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Securities registered or to be registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

None
(Title of Class)

Securities registered or to be registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Ordinary Shares, NIS 0.0001 nominal (par) value per share
(Title of Class)

Securities for which there is a reporting obligation pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act:

None
(Title of Class)

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of each of the issuer’s classes of capital or common stock as of the close of
the period covered by the Annual Report:

39,195,869 Ordinary Shares, NIS 0.0001 nominal (par) value per share, and 2,600 Founders’ Shares NIS 0.00001
nominal (par) value per share were outstanding as of December 31, 2007

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
o Yes   þ No

If this report is an annual or transition report, indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports
pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

o Yes   þ No

Note - checking the box above will not relieve any registrant required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 from their obligations under those sections.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

o Yes   þ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files).

o Yes   o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer.  See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

o Large Accelerated Filer     þ Accelerated Filer     o
Non-Accelerated Filer
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Indicate by check mark which basis of accounting the registrant has used to prepare the financial statements included
in this filing:

U.S. GAAP þ International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board  o

Other  ¨
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If “Other” has been checked in response to the previous question, indicate by check mark which financial statement item
the registrant has elected to follow.

o Item 17   o Item 18

If this is an anual report, indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of
the Exchange Act).

o Yes   þ No

iii
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Explanatory Note

Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. (the "Company") is filing this Amendment No. 1 (the "Amendment No. 1") to its
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2007 (the "Form 20-F") to include the inadvertent
omission in the auditor’s opinion to the financial statement schedule. This Amendment No. 1 includes the corrected
auditor’s opinion, together with the audited financial statements and financial statement schedule as originally filed
with the Form 20-F. Additionally, as required under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, new
certifications of the Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer are filed as exhibits hereto.
No revisions are being made to the Company's financial statements and except as described above, this Amendment
No. 1 does not amend any other information in the Form 20-F, does not reflect any events that may have occurred
subsequent to the filing of the original Form 20-F and does not modify or update in any way any disclosures made in
the Form 20-F.

PART III

ITEM 18.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements required by this item are found at the end of this 2007 Annual Report, beginning on page F-1.

The Financial Statement Schedule II – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts is found on page S-1 following the financial
statements.

1
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ITEM 19. EXHIBITS

The exhibits filed with this Amendment No.1 are listed on the index of exhibits below.

Exhibit No. Description

12.1
Certification of the Interim Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

12.2
Certification of the Group Vice President, Interim Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

13 Certification of the Interim Chief Executive Officer and Group Vice President, Interim Chief Financial
Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

2
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SIGNATURE

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has duly caused
and authorized the undersigned to sign this 2007 Annual Report on its behalf.

TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

By: /s/ Michael Kalb
Michael Kalb

Dated: January 12, 2012 Group Vice President, Interim Chief
Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd (the
"Company") and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statement of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. In connection with our audits of the financial statements,
we have also audited the accompanying financial statement schedule. These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements
and schedule.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Also, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated June 29, 2011 does not express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting because management was unable to complete all of its testing of internal controls and
we were unable to apply other procedures to satisfy ourselves as to the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

As discussed in Notes 2.q to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Interpretation No. 48,
"Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes" - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, effective January 1,
2007.       

/s/ Ziv Haft
Tel Aviv, Israel Ziv Haft
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June 29, 2011 Certified Public Accountants (Isr)

BDO Member Firm
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd.
Yakum, Israel

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”)  as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on that risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Since management was unable to complete all of its testing of internal controls and we were unable to apply other
procedures to satisfy ourselves as to the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, the
scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Nevertheless, we draw attention to management conclusion that the Company has at least the following material
weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007:

● Control Activities Associated with Financial Statement Closing Processes. The Company identified material
weaknesses in its financial statement closing  processes arising from the potential for a material error in the
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financial statements from consideration of the following deficiencies:
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● Estimating certain accounts receivable reserves and sales deductions including
rebates and other sales deductions.

● Significant, complex and non-routine transactions, including the area of
taxation and certain other accounting items.

● Ensuring adequate preparation, timely review and documented approval of
account reconciliations, journal entries, both recurring and non-recurring and
certain information primarily in the form of spreadsheets that supports our
financial reporting process, and consistent communication among the various
finance and non-finance organizations across the Company on the terms of our
commercial arrangements.

●Revenue. The Company lacks the proper procedures and controls in estimating its rebate and other deductions
reserves, including indirect and Medicaid rebates.  Specifically, the Company is dependent on manual processes and
experienced turnover in the roles responsible for certain estimates and lacked sufficient time and resources to
properly and fully estimate these reserves.  As a result, the Company did not consistently and accurately record the
provision at the time of the sale.

● Inventory. The Company found that adjustments of inventory and cost of goods sold were necessary and mainly
relate to errors in the assessment of inventory valuation.  Inventory valuation adjustments primarily resulted due to
the errors identified in the accounts receivable reserves, which impacted the computation of the Company’s net
selling prices which resulted in changes to inventory valuation.

● Income Taxes. The Company did not maintain adequate policies and procedures and related internal controls or
employ adequate resources with sufficient technical expertise, on a global basis, in the area of accounting for income
taxes to ensure the completeness, accuracy, and timely preparation and review of our consolidated income tax
provision, related account balances and disclosures sufficient to prevent a material misstatement of related account
balances.  In addition, the Company was unable to finalize its tax provision due to the lack of audited financial
statements for prior years.

These material weaknesses, identified by management, were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2007, of the Company and this report does not affect our report dated June 29, 2011, on those financial statements.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) the consolidated balance sheets of Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. as of December 31, 2007, and the
related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the
year end December 31, 2007 and our report dated June 29, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ziv Haft
Ziv Haft
Certified Public Accountants (Isr)
BDO Member Firm

June 29, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006.  These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a  basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2.u. to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provision of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” effective January 1, 2006.

Tel-Aviv, Israel /s/ Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer

KOST FORER GABBAY &
KASIERER

March 25, 2010 A Member of Ernst & Young
Global
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   TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
U.S. dollars and shares in thousands 

December 31,
2007 2006

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 45,187 $ 16,140
Marketable securities - 114
Accounts receivable:
Trade, net 70,017 39,456
Other receivables, prepaid expenses and other 26,260 15,693
Inventories 66,957 56,762
Assets held for sale - 5,232
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 208,421 133,397
LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS 26,576 31,543
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET 211,929 219,753
GOODWILL 7,287 7,231
INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEFERRED COSTS, NET 26,368 29,063
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 2,772 3,703
TOTAL ASSETS $ 483,353 $ 424,690

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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   TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
U.S. dollars and shares in thousands 

December 31,
2007 2006

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term bank credit and short-term loans $108,992 $119,326
Current maturities of long-term debt 31,348 28,428
Accounts payable:
Trade payables 20,326 18,442
Other current liabilities 72,203 97,383
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 232,869 263,579
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
     Long-term debt, net of current maturities 76,361 90,377
     Deferred income taxes 5,586 5,516
     Other long-term liabilities 15,299 15,435
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 97,246 111,328
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES 330,115 374,907
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Share capital:
Ordinary shares of NIS 0.0001 par value:
Authorized at December 31, 2007 and 2006: 200,000,000 shares; Issued
at December 31, 2007 and 2006: 39,460,509 and 29,624,218 shares,
respectively; Outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006:
39,195,869 and 29,358,265 shares, respectively 679 679
Founders’ shares of NIS 0.00001 par value:
Authorized, issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006:
2,600 shares 1 1
Additional paid-in capital 221,814 165,058
Accumulated other comprehensive income 27,620 14,106
Treasury stock (264,640 and 265,953 shares at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively) (1,361 ) (1,388 )
Accumulated (deficit) (95,515 ) (128,673 )
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 153,238 49,783
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $483,353 $424,690

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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   TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
U.S. dollars and shares in thousands (except per share data)

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Sales, net $319,554 $252,269 $288,623
Cost of sales 133,229 123,516 122,615
Impairment 170 25,862 -
Gross profit 186,155 102,891 166,008
Operating expenses:
     Research and development, net 29,817 36,273 45,714
     Selling, marketing, general and administrative 97,274 109,048 110,748
     Impairment - 27,923 -

127,091 173,244 156,462
Operating income (loss) 59,064 (70,353 ) 9,546
Financial expenses, net 22,816 11,454 7,985
Other gain, net 4,300 - -
Income (loss) before income taxes 40,548 (81,807 ) 1,561
Tax expense 6,212 872 1,477
Net income (loss) $34,336 $(82,679 ) $84

Basic net income (loss) per ordinary share $0.99 $(2.82 ) $0.0 (*)
Diluted net income (loss) per ordinary share $0.98 $(2.82 ) $0.0 (*)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares used to compute basic
income (loss) per share 34,725 29,347 29,250
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares used to compute diluted
income (loss) per share 35,215 29,347 29,590

(*) Amount is less than $0.01.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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   TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
U.S. dollars and shares in thousands

Accumulated Retained
Deferred Other Earnings  Total Total

Number
of Share AdditionalStock-basedComprehensiveTreasury (AccumulatedComprehensiveShareholders’

Shares Capital
Paid-in
CapitalCompensation

Income
(loss) Shares Deficit)

Income
(loss) Equity

Balance at
January 1, 2005 29,170 $ 680 $ 162,027 $ (450 ) $ 12,498 $ (1,359) $ (45,913 ) $ 127,483
Exercise of
options and
issuance of
shares of
     Employee
Stock Purchase
Plan  (ESPP) 132 1,940 1,940
Share-based
compensation 13 (13 ) -
Reversal of
share-based
compensation
related to 
     forfeiture of
stock options
previously
granted (81 ) 81 -
Share-based
compensation 382 382
Purchase of
treasury stock (21 ) (571 ) (571 )
Release of
treasury shares
to employees
under ESPP 20 532 (130 ) 402
Comprehensive
income (loss),
net of tax
     Foreign
currency
translation
     adjustments (1,706 ) (1,706 ) (1,706 )
     Unrealized
gain from
available
     for
sale marketable

55 55 55
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securities
Net income 84 84 84
Total
comprehensive
(loss): (1,567 )
Balance at
December 31,
2005 29,301 680 163,899 - 10,847 (1,398) (45,959 ) 128,069
Exercise of
options and
issuance of
shares of ESPP 57 560 560
Share-based
compensation 599 599
Purchase of
treasury shares (12 ) (196 ) (196 )
Release of
treasury shares
to employees
under ESPP 12 206 (35 ) 171
Comprehensive
income (loss),
net of tax
     Foreign
currency
translation
     adjustments 3,281 3,281 3,281
     Unrealized
gain from
available
     for
sale marketable
securities (22 ) (22 ) (22 )
Net (loss) - (82,679 ) (82,679 ) (82,679 )
Total
comprehensive
(loss): (79,420 )
Balance at
December 31,
2006 29,358 680 165,058 - 14,106 (1,388) (128,673 ) 49,783
Release of
treasury shares
to employees
under ESPP 1 27 27
Cumulative
effect adjustment
upon adoption of
FIN 48 (1,178 ) (1,178 )
Exercise of
options and
issuance of

49 183 183
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shares of ESPP
Issuance of
shares and
warrants to Sun,
net 6,788 39,189 39,189
Exercise of Sun
warrants 3,000 17,100 17,100
Share-based
compensation 284 284
Comprehensive
income (loss),
net of tax
     Foreign
currency
translation
     adjustments 13,597 13,597 13,597
     Unrealized
gain from
available
     for
sale marketable
securities 11 11 11
Reclassification
of unrealized
gains from
marketable
securties to
earnings (94 ) (94 ) (94 )
Net income 34,336 34,336 34,336
Total
comprehensive
income: $ 47,850
Balance at
December 31,
2007 39,196 $ 680 $ 221,814 $ - $ 27,620 $ (1,361) $ (95,515 ) $ 153,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.                                                                                                                                                       
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   TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
U.S. dollars in thousands 

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
     Net income (loss) $ 34,336 $ (82,679 ) $ 84
Adjustments required to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
          provided by (used in) operating activities:
     Depreciation and amortization 22,614 25,112 24,011
     Change in deferred charges and other assets 244 842 757
     Impairment of long-lived assets 170 53,785 -
     Share-based compensation expense 284 599 382
     Accrued severance pay and other long-term
liabilities, net (1,492 ) (527 ) 1,156
     (Gain) loss on sale of long-lived assets (3,727 ) 1,641 36
     Realized gain on sale of marketable securities (94 ) - -
    (Increase) decrease in fair value of derivative
instruments (6,948 ) (4,638 ) 2,871
     Effect of exchange differences on
inter-company balances 7,259 (60 ) 791
     Increase (decrease) in long-term debt due to
currency fluctuation 7,714 4,967 (2,469

) 

     Deferred income taxes, net 2,197 (3,231 ) (884 ) 
     Class action liabilities, net - 3,000 -
     (Increase) decrease in trade receivables, net (29,626 ) (3,794 ) 15,924
     Decrease in short-term other receivables,
prepaid expenses and other 730 3,533 39
     Decrease (increase) in long-term other
receivables, prepaid expenses and other 2,125 (426 ) (2,506

) 

     Decrease (increase) in interest receivable - 588 (217 ) 
     (Increase) decrease in inventories, net (7,430 ) 3,923 5,554
     Increase (decrease) in trade payables 882 (3,664 ) 397
     Decrease in other accounts payable and
accrued expenses (28,361 ) (23,959 ) (28,036

) 

     Increase (decrease) in income tax payable 275 229 (510 ) 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 1,152 (24,759 ) 17,380

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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   TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
U.S. dollars in thousands 

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and capitalization of
          related direct incremental costs (5,984 ) (21,913 ) (47,317 )
     Proceeds (repayments) from restricted
short-term bank deposits - 6,326 (22 )
     Investment in other intangible assets (229 ) (301 ) (2,479 )
     Proceeds from long-term deposits and other
assets - 14,000 -
     Investment in marketable securities - - (17,762 )
     Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 125 - 31,060
     Proceeds from sale of long-lived assets 10,151 272 298
Net cash provided by (used) in investing
activities 4,063 (1,616 ) (36,222 )

Cash flows from financing activities:
     Proceeds from issuance of shares 56,499 731 2,342
     (Repayments) proceeds of short-term bank
debt, net (6,388 ) (1,996 ) 9,472
     Proceeds from long-term debt and capital
leases - - 25,408
     Purchase of treasury shares related to ESPP - (196 ) (571 )
     Repayment of long-term debt (26,373 ) (26,700 ) (24,794 )
     Repayment of other intangible assets
purchased in prior years - (2,200 ) (5,450 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 23,738 (30,361 ) 6,407
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 94 48 (67 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 29,047 (56,688 ) (12,502 )
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 16,140 72,828 85,330
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 45,187 $ 16,140 $ 72,828

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
transactions:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 14,793 $ 12,989 $ 8,716
Income taxes $ 3,644 $ 3,465 $ 4,342
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(a) Non-cash investing and financing
transactions:
      Purchase of property, plant and equipment
on credit $ 317 $ 1,582 $ 3,339
      Investment in intangible assets on credit $ 14 $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1: — GENERAL

a.  Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. (the “Company” or “Taro”) is an Israeli corporation, which operates in Israel and
elsewhere through its Israeli, North American, and European subsidiaries (the “Group”). The principal business
activities of the Group are the production, research, development and marketing of pharmaceutical products. The
Company’s ordinary shares are quoted on the Pink Sheets Electronic Quotation Service (“Pink Sheets”) under the
symbol TAROF. As used herein, the terms "we," "us," "our," “Taro” and the "Company" mean Taro Pharmaceutical
Industries Ltd. and its subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated.

The activities of the Group in North America are performed by Taro Pharmaceuticals Inc., Taro Pharmaceuticals
North America, Inc. and Taro Pharmaceuticals U.S.A., Inc. (“Taro U.S.A.”). Taro Research Institute Ltd. in Israel
provides research and development services to the Group. Taro International Ltd. in Israel, Taro Pharmaceuticals
Ireland Ltd. and Taro Pharmaceuticals Europe B.V. are engaged in the pharmaceutical activities of the Group outside
North America.

The Group manufactures generic and proprietary drug products in facilities located in Israel, Ireland, and Canada, and
manufactures bulk active pharmaceutical ingredients in its facilities located in Israel. The Group’s research facilities
are located in Israel and Canada. The majority of the Group’s sales are in North America.

In North America, the Company sells and distributes its products principally to drug industry wholesalers, drug store
chains and mass merchandisers. In Israel, the Group sells and distributes its products principally to healthcare
institutions and private pharmacies.

In the generic pharmaceutical industry, selling prices and related profit margins tend to decrease as products mature
due to increased competition from other generic pharmaceutical manufacturers as they gain approval from the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA”), the Canadian Health Products and Food Branch Inspectorate, and the
Israeli and other Ministries of Health (“Government Agencies”) to manufacture equivalent products. The Group’s future
operating results are dependent on, among other things, its ability to introduce new products and maintain its
approvals to market existing drugs.

While non-compliance with Government Agencies’ regulations can result in refusal to allow entry, seizure, fines or
injunctive actions to prevent the sale of products, no such actions against the Group or its products have ever
occurred.  The Group believes that it is in material compliance with all Government Agencies’ regulations.  In
February 2009, our Canadian manufacturing facility received a warning letter from the FDA (the “Warning Letter”)
expressing concern identified during a July 2008 inspection about certain quality control systems, including failure to
complete investigations of quality issues in a timely manner.  The Company responded to the Warning Letter on
March 17, 2009, submitted and discussed a full compliance work plan with the FDA, provided periodic written
updates to the FDA and committed to working with the FDA to resolve all issues.  The Company has corrected the
specific observations cited during the July 2008 inspection and in the Warning Letter, and, to ensure its products meet
all requirements, has improved its ability to adhere to current good manufacturing practices (“cGMPs”) by adding
additional qualified personnel, engaging outside experts and adding new procedures to resolve any systemic issues
and prevent recurrence.  The observations cited in the Warning Letter do not relate to any of the Company's other
facilities.  Until remedial action is complete and the FDA has confirmed compliance with cGMPs, new applications
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listing the Canadian facility as a manufacturing location of finished dosage forms may not be approved.  However,
one new product made at the Company’s Canadian facility was approved by the FDA in May 2009 after the issuance
of the Warning Letter.  Other Federal agencies take the Warning Letter into account when considering the awards of
contracts and in some cases may have the right to terminate any agreement they have with us or remove products from
their pricing schedule as one agency has done.  A formal cGMP re-inspection was conducted by the FDA in February
2011 to evaluate the effectiveness of corrective actions undertaken by Taro.  The FDA informed the Company on
April 19, 2011 that the site has an acceptable regulatory status.  Therefore, the issues noted in the February 5, 2009
warning letter are considered to be resolved.  This has not had a material impact on the Company’s financial condition.
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While the majority of the Company’s products are either synthesized by the Company itself or are derived from
multiple source materials, some raw materials and certain products are currently obtained from single domestic or
foreign suppliers. The Company does not believe that any interruption of supply from a single supplier would have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial position. To date, the Group has not
experienced difficulties in obtaining raw materials.

b.  The Company successfully addressed its past liquidity issues by implementing initiatives to improve revenues and
cash collections. During 2006, our cash flows were negatively impacted by operating losses, capital expenditures
and a reduction in wholesaler inventory. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company’s cash on hand
increased by $29,047 from $16,140 to $45,187 primarily due to $56,499 of equity issuances, net of issuance costs,
and $10,151 of long-lived asset sales offset by $32,761 of debt repayments and $5,982 of capital investments.
During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, consolidated cash on hand increased to approximately $125,500,
primarily due to higher operating cash flows from increased sales volumes and cash management activities. During
the quarter ended March 31, 2010, debt decreased to $160,500, primarily due to scheduled principal payments.  As
of March 31, 2010, $100,200 of the Company’s total debt is callable on-demand due to covenant violations.
Consolidated cash at March 31, 2010 exceeds callable debt by approximately $25,300. In addition, the Company is
current with all of its debt service payments. As a result of the Company’s cash position at March 31, 2010 and the
expected cash flows from operations, the Company has the ability to continue as a going concern for the
foreseeable future.

c.  On May 18, 2007, the Company, Alkaloida Chemical Company Exclusive Group Ltd. (“Alkaloida”), a subsidiary of
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. (together with its affiliates “Sun”) (Reuters: SUN.BO, Bloomberg: SUNP IN,
NSE: SUNPHARMA, BSE: 524715) and Aditya Acquisition Company Ltd. (“Aditya”) entered into a merger
agreement (the “Merger Agreement”).  In addition, Taro entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with Alkaloida,
pursuant to which Taro issued Alkaloida 6,787,500 ordinary shares at $6.00 per share, for a total of $40,725 (the
“Share Purchase Agreement”).  Under the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement, Sun also received a three-year
warrant to purchase additional ordinary shares at $6.00 per share.  On August 2, 2007, Sun exercised a portion of
its warrant in favor of Alkaloida, as assignee, and purchased 3,000,000 additional shares at an exercise price of
$6.00 per share, or $18,000.  This additional investment, together with its original purchase of Taro’s newly issued
shares, brought Sun’s investment in Taro to $58,725.  Taro paid $2,436 in stock issuance costs and therefore
retained $56,289 of the proceeds.  The net proceeds were recorded within shareholders’ equity on the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with FASB ASC Subtopic 815-40, “Derivatives and Hedging - Contracts in Entity’s
Own Equity”, as the Company did not meet the criteria of a derivative under FASB ASC Section 815-40-30,
“Derivatives and Hedging - Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity – Initial Measurement”.

On May 28, 2008, the Company terminated the Merger Agreement.  On the same day, the Company and its directors,
other than the members of the Levitt and Moros families (the “Independent Directors”), brought a lawsuit against Sun
and its affiliates in the Tel-Aviv District Court (the “District Court”) seeking a declaratory judgment that, under the
Israeli Companies Law, a “Special Tender Offer” was required.  On June 25, 2008, Sun gave notice that it was
exercising its option under the May 18, 2007 option agreement entered into by Sun, with Dr. Barrie Levitt, Dr. Daniel
Moros, Ms. Tal Levitt, Dr. Jacob Levitt and Taro Development Corporation (“TDC”) (the “Option Agreement”).  Pursuant
to the Option Agreement, Sun was granted the option to acquire certain ordinary shares owned by Dr. Barrie Levitt,
Dr. Moros, Ms. Levitt, and TDC for $7.75 per share, as well as all of the founders’ shares, which represented one third
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of the voting power of all of the Company’s shares, for no consideration (the “Options”).  A condition to the exercise of
the Options required Sun to commence a tender offer to purchase any and all ordinary shares owned by all other
shareholders for $7.75 per share.  According to the terms of the Option Agreement, the transactions contemplated
would be consummated contemporaneously with the expiration of the tender offer.
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On June 30, 2008, Sun commenced a regular tender offer for any and all ordinary shares at a price of $7.75 per share
(the “Sun Offer”).  On August 26, 2008, the District Court ruled that Sun was not required to comply with the Special
Tender Offer rules.  On August 28, 2008, the Company and its Independent Directors filed an appeal to the Supreme
Court of the State of Israel (the “Israeli Supreme Court”) and requested a temporary injunction to prevent Sun from
acquiring additional ordinary shares which would result in its voting power being more than 45% of the Company’s
voting power during the pendency of the appeal.  On September 1, 2008, the Israeli Supreme Court granted the
temporary injunction.

On September 7, 2010, the Supreme Court denied the Company’s appeal and ordered the revocation of the temporary
injunction which had prohibited the closing of the Sun Offer.

On the same day, Sun announced the decision of the Israeli Supreme Court and the expiration date of the Sun Offer
(the “Announcement Date”) as the fifth business day following the Announcement Date which was 12:00 midnight,
New York City time, on Tuesday, September 14, 2010.

On September 21, 2010, the Company announced that the controlling shareholders of the Company, the Levitt and
Moros families (together with their affiliated entities, the “Levitt/Moros Shareholders”), executed a letter agreement (the
“Letter Agreement”) on September 20, 2010 with Sun.  Pursuant to the Letter Agreement, the Levitt/Moros
Shareholders transferred certain beneficial interests in the Company, including the beneficial ownership of the
founders’ shares of Taro, to Sun in accordance with the Option Agreement.

Concurrent with the execution of the Letter Agreement, Sun and the members of Taro’s Board of Directors (the
“Board”), including the Levitt/Moros Shareholders, entered into a settlement agreement and release, pursuant to which
Sun and the incumbent members of Taro’s Board agreed, among other things, to release each other from, and
covenanted not to sue, based on certain claims related generally to the acquisition of Taro by Sun and litigation arising
therefrom.

Also, on September 20, 2010, Taro’s Board passed a resolution appointing Dilip Shanghvi, Sudhir Valia, Aalok
Shanghvi, Hasmukh Shah and Ilan Leviteh as members of the Board, and the incumbent members of Taro’s Board
submitted their resignations as directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries, as applicable.  At a
subsequent Board meeting, Mr. Dilip Shanghvi was elected Chairman of Taro’s Board.

In addition to the foregoing, the Company issued a letter dated September 20, 2010, to Sun and Alkaloida
acknowledging the valid exercise by Alkaloida of a certain Warrant No. 2 issued August 1, 2007, for the purchase of
3,787,500 ordinary shares of Taro for an aggregate price of $22,725.  With the exercise of Warrant No. 2, as well as
the completion of the acquisition of the shares from the Levitt/Moros Shareholders and the acquisition of the shares
from Templeton Asset Management Ltd. (“Templeton”) on November 1, 2010, Sun increased its ownership of Taro's
ordinary shares to 64.8% and, with Taro's founders' shares, its voting rights to 76.5%.

On January 18, 2011, Alkaloida acquired 712,500 ordinary shares of Taro pursuant to a certain Warrant No. 2 dated
August 1, 2007 issued by the Company to Sun Pharma (the "Warrant").  Additionally, Alkaloida acquired 712,500
ordinary shares of the Company available pursuant to a certain Share Purchase Agreement dated May 18, 2007
between Alkaloida and the Company (the "SPA").  As a result of the exercise of the Warrant and the purchase of
shares by Alkaloida pursuant to the SPA, the Company's issued and outstanding ordinary shares are 44,505,457 and
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Sun Pharma owns, or controls, 29,497,933, or 66.3%, of the Company's ordinary shares, and with the Company's
founders' shares, 77.3% of the vote attributable to the share equity of the Company.
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d.  In July 2004, Taro U.S.A. entered into a license agreement with Medicis Pharmaceutical Corporation (“Medicis”) for
four product lines used in the treatment of skin disorders, including the Lustra® product line and two previously
unmarketed products in the United States, Canada and Puerto Rico. The entire purchase price of $35,565 was
treated as a product rights purchase and therefore, was recorded on the balance sheet under the line item “other
intangible assets and deferred charges, net.” The Company allocated $23,165 for the Lustra® product family.
Lustra® and Lustra-AF® were marketed by Medicis for a number of years. One of the previously unmarketed
products, from the Lustra® product family, was subsequently launched by Taro under the name Lustra-Ultra™. Taro
allocated $12,400 for the second previously unmarketed product, which was subsequently launched by Taro under
the name U-Kera™. During 2006, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $10,023, to write off the
remaining carrying value of the U-Kera™ intangible asset and recorded an impairment charge of $13,236 to reduce
the carrying value of the Lustra® intangible asset to $6,298. These charges were the result of competitive market
pressures and were recorded in cost of sales. The impairments were determined by conducting valuation studies
and employing a discounted cash flow analysis. The remaining carrying value is being amortized to cost of sales
over the weighted-average life of the product rights. See Note 2.k.

As part of the agreement, the Company received $20,000 from Medicis, which the Company estimated was its returns
exposure for these products, and with which the Company established a reserve. This return reserve is presented
together with the reserve for returns in current liabilities. The Company also agreed to accept expired returned goods
in the future, even though the product returned may not have been sold by Taro. The reserve was established
anticipating that customers will deduct, from their cash payments to the Company, the price that they originally paid
to Medicis for the goods being returned. This reserve is being utilized for the return exposure related to the acquired
products. During 2006, $8,300 of the reserve was recorded as income based on a determination that the reserve
exceeded the requirements for such returns as a result of the near-term expiration of the customer right of return.

e.  In March 2005, the Company, through its subsidiaries, entered into multi-year agreements with Alterna-TCHP,
LLC (“Alterna”) to license the Company’s over-the-counter ElixSure® and Kerasal® products in North America.

The terms of the agreements include, among other things, the license of rights to distribute ElixSure® and Kerasal®
products and an option to acquire the ownership rights for additional consideration, multi-year manufacturing and
supply arrangements and the sale of ElixSure® inventory on-hand at the outset of the arrangement. At the time of
signing the agreements, the Company received $10,000 and there were to be additional payments due over the term of
the agreements. In addition, the Company receives payments from Alterna for ongoing manufacturing and supply of
the products during the agreement term.

The Company accounted for this transaction in accordance with EITF Issue No.00-21, “Revenue Arrangement with
Multiple Deliverable” ("EITF 00-21”). The Company has concluded that the entire arrangement should be considered as
one unit of accounting mainly because the Company could not establish fair value for all undelivered elements in the
transaction. Accordingly, the total up front consideration is being recognized as revenue over the three-year term of
the arrangement. Revenue recognition is limited to cash received. In addition, the Company recorded deferred
inventory cost in the amount of $2,037 related to the costs of ElixSure® products that were sold to Alterna at the
outset of the agreement. The cost is amortized over the three-year term of the manufacturing and supply services
under the agreements.
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In June 2006, the Company and Alterna signed an amendment to the above agreements. Pursuant to the terms of the
amendment Alterna exercised its option to purchase the full rights to the Kerasal® products and settled all outstanding
balances with the Company for products shipped under the manufacturing and supply arrangement in consideration
for a cash payment of $12,000. According to the amendment, the Company will continue to manufacture and supply
the products to Alterna. Consistent with its original accounting treatment, the Company has concluded that all of the
deliverables under the amendment should be considered as one unit of accounting, therefore the consideration is being
amortized over the remaining term of the agreement. As of December 31, 2007, the current and non-current portions
of deferred revenue related to this agreement were $1,176 and $0, respectively, which were recorded in other current
liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, the current and non-current portions
of deferred revenue related to this agreement were $7,055 and $1,176, respectively, which were recorded in other
current liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively. Subsequently, Alterna discontinued purchasing the
ElixSure® products. However, Alterna has continued to purchase Kerasal® in limited quantities.

F-15

Edgar Filing: TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD - Form 20-F/A

33



                                                                                                                          TARO PHARMACEUTICAL
INDUSTRIES LTD.

Notes to consolidated financial statements 
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data) 

The Company determined that Alterna is a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”) in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46 (Revised December 2003), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”
However, the Company has concluded that it is not the primary beneficiary of the VIE, therefore Alterna has not been
consolidated into the Company’s results of operations. The Company concluded that the amendment to the agreements
in June 2006 should not change this conclusion, primarily since the Company does not have exposure to losses from
its involvement with Alterna.

f.  The Company, through its Irish subsidiary, owns a pharmaceutical manufacturing and research facility in Ireland,
designed primarily for the manufacture of sterile products. As a result of the delay in receiving regulatory approval
for the manufacture of new products, the inability to pursue the launch of certain approved products, and further
financial constraints during 2006 which significantly reduced the level of additional investment in the Irish facility,
the Company recorded an impairment charge related to its Irish facility during 2006.

The Company used the market approach in determining the fair value of the group of assets. The Company recorded
an impairment charge, in operating expenses, aggregating $27,023, resulting in a remaining book value of
approximately $14,900. In addition, the Company recorded approximately $900 of loss on purchase commitments of
$3,945 due to the decline in value of additional equipment that the Company committed to purchase at December 31,
2006. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in November 2009, the Company’s Irish subsidiary sold pieces of that
equipment for $1,485 net of transaction costs.

During 2010, the Company announced the closure of the manufacturing facility in Ireland. The Company expects to
dispose of the facility by selling it as soon as practical. The Company is currently analyzing the impact of that event
on subsequent years’ financial statements and any possible additional impairment that may be required in future years.

NOTE 2: — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared according to United States generally accepted accounting
principles (“U.S. GAAP”).

a.  Use of estimates:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. The Company’s management believes that the estimates, judgments and
assumptions used are reasonable based upon information available at the time they are made. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company’s most critical estimates are used in its determination of its sales incentives reserves. See Note 4 for
details.
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b.  Financial statements in U.S. dollars:

A majority of the revenue of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (exclusive of its Canadian, Irish, and U.K.
subsidiaries – see below) is generated in U.S. dollars (“dollars”). In addition, a substantial portion of the costs of the
Company and these subsidiaries is incurred in dollars. The Company’s management believes that the dollar is the
primary currency of the economic environment in which the Company and these subsidiaries operate. Thus, the
functional and reporting currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is the dollar, requiring re-measurement from the
local currency into the dollar for each of these entities. All exchange gains and losses resulting from the
re-measurement are reflected in the statement of operations as financial income or expenses, as appropriate.

The functional currency of the Company’s Canadian, Irish, and U.K. subsidiaries are the Canadian Dollar, the Euro,
and the British Pound, respectively.

Accordingly, the financial statements of the Canadian, Irish and the U.K. subsidiaries have been translated into
dollars. All balance sheet accounts have been translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.
Amounts recorded in the statements of operations have been translated using the average exchange rate prevailing
during the year. The resulting translation adjustments are reported as a component of shareholders’ equity under
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

c.  Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. A private corporation, TDC, owns 50% of the shares
that have voting rights in Taro U.S.A., with the Company owning the other 50%. In 1993, TDC signed an agreement
with the Company to assign its voting rights in Taro U.S.A. in all elections of directors of Taro U.S.A. as the
Company may designate. TDC may terminate the agreement upon one year written notice. As of December 31, 2007,
no such notice of termination has been provided. TDC is a minority shareholder in the Company by way of owning
3.1% of Taro U.S.A. shares that have economic rights. Since losses applicable to TDC exceed its interest in Taro
U.S.A. equity, such excess and any further losses applicable to TDC are charged against the Company as TDC has no
obligation to fund such losses.

d.  Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly-liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash with original
maturities of three months or less at the date acquired.

e.  Marketable securities:

Marketable securities are comprised primarily of shares of stock in other publicly-traded companies and auction rate
securities. These marketable securities covered by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 115, “Accounting
for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” were designated as available-for-sale. Accordingly, these
securities are stated at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss), a separate component of shareholders’ equity.
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f.  Allowance for doubtful accounts:

The allowance for doubtful accounts is calculated primarily with respect to specific balances, which, in the opinion of
the Company’s management, are doubtful of collection. The allowance, in the opinion of the Company’s management,
is sufficient to cover probable uncollectible balances. See Note 3.
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g.  Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventory reserves are provided to cover risks arising
from slow-moving items, short-dated inventory, excess inventory or obsolescence. Changes in these provisions are
charged to cost of goods sold. Cost is determined as follows:

Raw and packaging materials – average cost basis.

Finished goods and work in progress – average production costs including materials, labor and direct and indirect
manufacturing expenses.

Purchased products for commercial purposes – average cost basis.

The amounts of inventory reserves recorded as cost of sales were $2,403, $4,859, and $1,839, for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

h.  Property, plant and equipment:

1.  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Payroll and other costs
that are direct incremental costs necessary to bring an asset to the condition of its intended use incurred
during the construction and validation period of property, plant and equipment are capitalized to the cost of
such assets.

2.  Interest costs are capitalized in accordance with SFAS No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost”.

3.  Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, from the date
the assets are ready for their intended use, at the following annual rates:

 %
Buildings  2.5 - 10
Machinery and equipment  5 - 20 (mainly

10)
Motor vehicles  15 - 20
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment and computer equipment  6 - 33 (mainly

20)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated by the straight-line method over the shorter of their useful lives or the terms
of the leases (generally 5-10 years).

4.  The Group accounts for costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use in accordance with
Statement of Position (“SOP”) No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for
Internal Use,” (“SOP No. 98-1”). SOP No. 98-1 requires the capitalization of certain costs incurred in connection with
developing or obtaining internal use software during the application development stage. During the years 2007 and

Edgar Filing: TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD - Form 20-F/A

38



2006, the Group capitalized $56 and $49 of software costs, respectively. Software costs are amortized by the
straight-line method over their estimated useful life of three years.

5.  On February 7, 2007, the Company, in an effort to improve liquidity, sold a car park adjacent to its Irish facility for
$4,050, net of transaction costs and recorded in 2007 a pre-tax gain on this transaction of $3,721. This asset was
included in property plant and equipment at December 31, 2006, as the criteria to classify this land as
available-for-sale were met after the balance sheet date.
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i.  Lease of land from Israel Land Administration:

The Company leases land from the Israel Land Administration (“ILA”), which is accounted for pursuant to SFAS 13, as
amended by SFAS 98. Taro leases several parcels from the ILA. The lease period of the industrial parcel ends
between 2010 and 2058. The Company has the right to extend each of the lease agreements for an additional period of
49 years. The ILA lease agreements are standard agreements covering substantial portions of the land of Israel. The
standard agreements call for a Lease Period of 49 years, with an option for one additional Lease Period (i.e., total of
98 years). The ownership over the land is not transferred at the end of the lease period and there is no option to buy
the land at the end of such period. The expectation, based on practice and accumulated experience is that the renewal
price would be substantially below fair market value. Since such leases do not qualify as a capital lease, they are being
accounted for as operating leases. The prepaid lease amount is included in long-term receivables and other assets and
amortized over the term of the lease.

j.  Goodwill:

The Company follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”). Goodwill is not amortized, but rather is subject to an annual impairment test (or
more frequently if impairment indicators arise).

SFAS 142 prescribes a two-phase process for impairment testing of goodwill. The first phase screens for impairment;
while the second phase (if necessary) measures impairment.

In the first phase of impairment testing, goodwill attributable to one reporting unit is tested for impairment by
comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with the carrying value of the reporting unit. When the carrying value
exceeds the fair value, the second phase of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s
goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that
excess.

The Company operates in one operating segment, and this segment comprises its only reporting unit. Fair value of the
reporting unit is determined using market capitalization. The Company performs its annual impairment test during the
fourth fiscal quarter of each year. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, no impairment loss had been identified.

k.  Impairment of long-lived assets, intangible assets and deferred charges:

Intangible assets and deferred charges:

Acquired intangible assets and product rights to be held and used are not considered to have an indefinite useful life
and are amortized over their useful life of a weighted-average amortization period of 14 years using a straight-line
method of amortization that reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed
or otherwise used up, in accordance with SFAS 142.
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Debt issuance costs in respect to long-term loans from institutional investors and bondholders are deferred and
amortized under the effective interest method over the term of the loans from institutional investors and bondholders.
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Impairment of long-lived assets:

The Group’s long-lived assets, excluding goodwill, are reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets,” (“SFAS 144”) whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the aggregate future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. The impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds
the fair value of the asset. In the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded, in operating expenses, a
$27,923 impairment loss primarily related to the fixed assets in its Irish facility. In the year ended December 31, 2006,
the Company also recorded impairment charges of $25,862 in cost of sales, which is mainly comprised of a $23,259
impairment loss, primarily for its product rights for Lustra® and U-Kera and a $2,531 impairment loss related to one
of its warehouses and certain equipment in Canada. No impairment loss was recorded on these assets in the year
ended December 31, 2007. See also Notes 1.d and 1.e.

l.  Treasury shares:

The Company repurchases its ordinary shares from time to time on the open market and holds such shares as treasury
stock. The Company presents the cost to repurchase treasury stock as a reduction of shareholders’ equity.

From time to time the Company reissues treasury shares under the stock purchase plan, upon exercise of options and
upon vesting of restricted stock units. When treasury stock is reissued, the Company accounts for the re-issuance in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 6, “Status of Accounting Research Bulletins” and
charges the excess of the purchase cost, including related stock-based compensation expenses, over the re-issuance
price (loss) to retained earnings. The purchase cost is calculated based on the specific identification method.

In cases where the purchase cost is lower than the re-issuance price, the Company credits the difference to additional
paid-in capital.

m.  Revenue recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when title and risk of loss have transferred to its customers and
when the criteria in Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104”), and SFAS No. 48,
“Revenue Recognition When Right of Return Exists” (“SFAS 48”), have been satisfied. Those criteria generally require
that (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (ii) product delivery has occurred; (iii) the price to customers is
fixed or determinable; (iv) collectability is reasonably assured, and (v) the amount of product returns, chargebacks,
rebates and other sales deductions can be reasonably estimated. The Company ships products to its customers only in
response to, and to the extent of, the orders that customers submit to the Company. Depending on the terms of our
customer arrangements, revenue is recognized when the product is received by the customer (“FOB Destination Point”)
or at the time of shipment (“FOB Shipping Point”).

When the Company recognizes and records revenue from the sale of its pharmaceutical products, the Company, in the
same financial reporting period, records an estimate of various future deductions related to the sale. This has the effect
of reducing the amount of reported product sales. These deductions include the Company’s estimates, which may
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require significant judgment, of chargebacks, product returns, rebates, cash discounts and other sales deductions.

Chargebacks result from pricing arrangements the Company has with end-user customers establishing contract prices
which are lower than the wholesalers’ acquisition costs or invoice prices. When these customers buy the Company’s
products from their wholesaler of choice, the wholesaler issues a credit memo (chargeback) to the Company for the
difference between the invoice price and the end-user contract price. Chargeback reserves are estimated using current
wholesaler inventory data beyond the Company’s control, and historical data. Due to the passage of time from the
balance sheet date to the issuance of these financial statements, the Company has considered actual wholesaler returns
and reverse chargebacks received in estimating its chargeback reserve.
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Product returns result from agreements allowing the Company’s customers to return unsold inventory that is expired or
close to expiration. Product return reserves are calculated using the average lag period between sales and product
expiry, historical product returns experience, and specific return exposures to estimate the potential obligation for
returns of inventory in the distribution channel.

Rebates result from contractual agreements with the Company’s customers and are earned based on the Company’s
direct sales to customers or the Company’s customers’ sales to third parties. Rebate reserves from the Company’s direct
sales to customers and the Company’s customers’ sales to third parties are estimated using historical and contractual
data.

The Company generally offers discounts to its customers for payments within a certain period of time. Cash discount
reserves are calculated by multiplying the specified discount percentage by the outstanding receivable at the end of
each period.

Reserves for returns, Medicaid and indirect rebates are included in current liabilities. All other sales deductions
allowances are recorded as accounts receivable reserves. The reserve for returns is included in current liabilities as
substantially all of these returns will not be realized until after the year-end accounts receivable balances are settled.
Medicaid and indirect rebates are included in current liabilities because the Company does not have direct customer
relationships with any of the payees. See Notes 4 and 11 for more details.

The Company offers incentives to certain resellers and retailers through various marketing programs where the
Company agrees to reimburse them for advertising costs incurred to include the Company's products and accounts for
these in accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-09 "Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer
(Including a Reseller of Vendor's Product)", as reductions of revenue unless the customer service receives an
identifiable benefit in exchange for the consideration that is sufficiently separable from the customer's purchase of the
products and the fair value of the benefits can be reasonably estimated.

With respect to revenue recognition policies in the Alterna transaction, see also Note 1.e.

n.  Research and development:

Research and development expenses, net of grants received, are charged to expenses as incurred.

o.  Royalty-bearing grants:

Royalty-bearing grants from the government of Israel through the Office of the Chief Scientist for funding approved
research and development projects are recognized at the time the Company is entitled to such grants, on the basis of
the related costs incurred. The Company earned grants in the amounts of ($309), $430 and $559 during 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Such grants are included as deductions from research and development costs.

p.  Advertising expenses:
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The Group expenses advertising costs as incurred. Product samples are recorded within prepaid expense on the
consolidated balance sheet and recorded within advertising expenses when provided to potential customers.
Advertising expenses were approximately $6,473, $11,741, and $20,836 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

q.  Income taxes:

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”). SFAS
109, prescribes the use of the liability method, whereby deferred tax asset and liability account balances are
determined for temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and for
carryforward losses and credits. Deferred taxes are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. As of each balance sheet date, management determined that it was more
likely than not that the Company will not benefit from the deferred tax asset in the U.S., Ireland and certain other
subsidiaries. Therefore, for these locations a full valuation allowance was provided against deferred tax assets. In
future years, if it is more likely than not that the Company will be in a position to utilize its deferred tax asset, the
valuation allowance for such assets may be modified.
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Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted  FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes – an Interpretation of FAS 109” (“FIN 48”), which was issued in June 2006. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes, and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributes for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company’s
accounting policy, pursuant to the adoption of FIN 48, is to classify interest and penalties recognized in the financial
statements relating to uncertain tax positions as income tax expense. See Note 16. The following table presents the
impact at January 1, 2007 on the consolidated balance sheet as a result of implementing FIN 48:

Increase to short-term accrued taxes $ 1,178
Decrease to valuation allowance $ 6,220
Decrease to deferred tax assets $ 6,220
Increase to accumulated deficit $ 1,178

r.  Sales and other taxes collected and remitted to governmental authorities:

The Company collects various taxes from customers and remits them to governmental authorities. These taxes are
recorded on a net basis and therefore do not impact the statement of operations.

s.  Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculated based on the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during each year. Diluted net income (loss) per share is calculated based on the weighted-average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during each year, plus dilutive potential ordinary shares considered outstanding during the year
(except where anti-dilutive), in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.”

The total weighted-average number of options excluded from the calculations of diluted net earnings per share, as a
result of their anti-dilutive effect, was 1,126,528, 1,578,387, and 1,504,479 for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

t.  Freight and distribution costs:

In accordance with EITF 00-10, “Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs,” the Company’s accounting
policy is to classify shipping and handling costs as a part of sales and marketing expense. Freight and distribution
costs and distribution warehousing costs related to shipping and handling to customers, primarily through the use of
common carriers or external distribution services amounted to $9,436, $9,090, and $9,454 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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   TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

Accordingly, the following resolution is submitted for a stockholder vote at the Annual Meeting:

“RESOLVED:

That the stockholders of Anika Therapeutics, Inc. approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation paid
to the Named Executive Officers of Anika Therapeutics, Inc. as disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of
Regulation S-K, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, compensation tables, and
narrative discussion set forth in the Proxy Statement for the 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.”

This vote is advisory and will not be binding upon us or the Board. However, the Board values constructive dialogue
on executive compensation, and on other important governance topics, with stockholders and encourages all
stockholders to vote their shares on this matter.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock present or represented at the Annual
Meeting and voting on the matter is required to approve this resolution. Abstentions and broker non-votes, if any, will
not be treated as votes cast and will have no impact on this proposal. While this vote is required by law, it will not be
binding on us or the Board of Directors, nor will it create or imply any change in the fiduciary duties of, or impose any
additional fiduciary duty on, our company or the Board. However, the Compensation Committee will take into
account the outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation decisions.

Board Recommendation

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE TO
APPROVE THE OVERALL COMPENSATION OF THE NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS BY VOTING
“FOR” THIS RESOLUTION.
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OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors does not know of any other matters that will come before the Annual Meeting. However, if
any other matters are properly presented at the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the
accompanying proxy card to vote, or otherwise act, in accordance with their judgment on such matters.

SOLICITATION EXPENSES

All costs of solicitation of proxies will be borne by us. We have retained Georgeson, Inc., an independent proxy
solicitation firm, to assist us in soliciting proxies for an estimated fee of $15,000, plus reimbursement of reasonable
expenses. In addition to solicitation by mail, our directors, officers, and employees, without additional remuneration,
may solicit proxies in person or by telephone, e-mail, and facsimile. We will reimburse banks, brokerage firms, and
other custodians, nominees, trustees, and fiduciaries for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in
sending proxy materials to and soliciting proxies from beneficial holders of our shares.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be received by us on
or before December 17, 2018 in order to be considered for inclusion in our proxy statement. These proposals must
also comply with the rules of the SEC governing the form and content of proposals in order to be included in our
proxy statement and form of proxy, and proposals should be directed to: Secretary, Anika Therapeutics, Inc., 32
Wiggins Avenue, Bedford, Massachusetts 01730. A stockholder who wishes to present a proposal at the 2019 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, other than a proposal to be considered for inclusion in our proxy statement described above,
must have the proposal delivered personally to or mailed to and received by the Secretary, Anika Therapeutics, Inc.,
32 Wiggins Avenue, Bedford, Massachusetts 01730 U.S.A. We must receive the proposal on or before March 28,
2019, provided that such proposal shall not be required to be given more than sixty days prior to the 2019 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders. The proposal must also comply with the other requirements contained in the Massachusetts
By-laws, including supporting documentation and other information. Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will
confer discretionary voting authority with respect to these proposals, subject to SEC rules governing the exercise of
this authority.

The chairman of the meeting may, if the facts warrant, determine and declare to the meeting that any proposed item of
business was not brought before the meeting in accordance with the foregoing procedure and, if such chairman should
so determine, he or she shall so declare to the meeting that the defective item of business shall be disregarded.
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Pursuant to the rules of the SEC, services that deliver our communications to stockholders that hold their shares
through a bank, broker, or other nominee holder of record may deliver to multiple stockholders sharing the same
address a single copy of our 2017 Annual Report and this Proxy Statement. We will promptly deliver upon written
request a separate copy of the 2017 Annual Report and/or this Proxy Statement to any stockholder at a shared address
to which a single copy of the documents was delivered. Written requests should be made to Anika Therapeutics, Inc.,
32 Wiggins Avenue, Bedford, MA 01730, Attention: Secretary. Any stockholder who wishes to receive separate
copies of the 2017 Annual Report or this Proxy Statement in the future, or any stockholder who is receiving multiple
copies and would like to receive only one copy per household, should contact the stockholder’s bank, broker, or other
nominee holder of record.

STOCKHOLDERS MAY OBTAIN, WITHOUT CHARGE, A COPY OF OUR ANNUAL REPORT ON
FORM 10-K, INCLUDING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTAINED THEREIN, FILED WITH THE SEC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, BY WRITING TO OUR SECRETARY AT ANIKA
THERAPEUTICS, INC., 32 WIGGINS AVENUE, BEDFORD, MA 01730.
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APPENDIX A

PLAN OF DOMESTICATION
OF
ANIKA THERAPEUTICS, INC.

This Plan of Domestication has been adopted by Anika Therapeutics, Inc., a Massachusetts corporation (the
“Company”), as of March [Ÿ], 2018.

Whereas, the Company is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts and is authorized to issue 60,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common
Stock”) and 1,250,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Preferred Stock”);

Whereas, the Company wishes to change its domicile of incorporation from Massachusetts to Delaware by
domesticating in Delaware on the terms set forth herein; and

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) has adopted a resolution approving this Plan of
Domestication;

Now, therefore, the Company agrees as follows:

1.          Domestication. The Company shall reincorporate from Massachusetts to Delaware by domesticating in
Delaware pursuant to Section 265 of the Delaware General Corporation Law and Section 9.20 of the Massachusetts
Business Corporations Act. Following the domestication, the Company shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Delaware. The domestication of the Company in Delaware is referred to as the “Domestication.”

2.          Stockholder Approval. The Company shall submit this Plan of Domestication to its stockholders for approval
at the Company’s 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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3.          Effective Date. The Domestication shall be effective upon the filing of a Certificate of Conversion from a
Non-Delaware Corporation to a Delaware Corporation (the “Certificate of Conversion”) with the Secretary of State of
the State of Delaware and the filing of Articles of Charter Surrender with the Secretary of the Commonwealth of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, which filings shall be made as soon as practicable after all required stockholder
approvals have been obtained. The time of such effectiveness is referred to as the “Effective Date.”

4.          Common Stock. On the Effective Date, by virtue of the Domestication and without any action on the part of
the holders thereof, each share of Common Stock of the Company issued and outstanding immediately prior thereto
shall be unchanged, shall continue to represent one share of Common Stock of the Company as a Delaware
corporation, and shall remain issued and outstanding immediately after consummation of the Domestication.

5.          Options and Restricted Equity. On the Effective Date, by virtue of the Domestication and without any action
on the part of the holders thereof, all stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units and other restricted
equity outstanding and unexercised as of the Effective Date and awarded under the Company’s equity plans in effect
on the Effective Date shall continue and remain in effect upon the same terms and conditions as were in effect
immediately prior to the Domestication, and the Company shall continue to reserve that number of shares of Common
Stock with respect to each such equity plan as was reserved by the Company prior to the Effective Date with no other
changes in the terms and conditions thereof.

6.          Stock Certificates. On and after the Effective Date, all of the outstanding certificates that prior to that time
represented shares of the Common Stock of the Company shall be deemed for all purposes to continue to evidence
ownership of and to represent the shares of the Company into which the shares represented by such certificates have
been converted as herein provided. The registered owner on the books and records of the Company or its transfer
agent of any such outstanding stock certificate shall, until such certificate shall have been surrendered for transfer or
conversion or otherwise accounted for to the Company or its transfer agent, have and be entitled to exercise any
voting and other rights with respect to and to receive any dividend and other distributions upon the shares of the
Company evidenced by such outstanding certificate as above provided.

7.          Succession. On the Effective Date, all of the rights, privileges, debts, liabilities, powers and property of the
Company as a Massachusetts corporation shall continue to be the rights, privileges, debts, liabilities, powers and
property of the Company as a Delaware corporation in the manner and as more fully set forth in Section 265 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law. Without limiting the foregoing, upon the Effective Date, all property, rights,
privileges, franchises, patents, trademarks, licenses, registrations, agreements, contracts and other assets of every kind
and description of the Company shall continue to be vested in and devolved upon the Company without further act or
deed. All rights of creditors of the Company and all liens upon any property of the Company shall be preserved
unimpaired, and all debts, liabilities and duties of the Company shall continue to be obligations of the Company.
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8.          Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws. Immediately prior to or simultaneously with the filing of the
Certificate of Conversion, the Company shall file the Certificate of Incorporation in the form of Exhibit A hereto (the
“Certificate of Incorporation”) with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which shall become the Certificate
of Incorporation of the Company as of the Effective Date. The Bylaws set forth as Exhibit B hereto (the “Bylaws”) shall
become the Bylaws of the Company as of the Effective Date.

9.          Directors and Officers. The members of the Board and the officers of the Company immediately prior to the
Effective Date shall continue in office following the Effective Date until the expiration of their respective terms of
office and until their successors have been elected and qualified.

10.        Amendment. This Plan of Domestication may be amended by the Board at any time prior to the Effective
Date, provided that an amendment made subsequent to the approval of this plan by the stockholders of the Company
shall not alter or change (a) the amount or kind of shares or other securities, obligations, rights to acquire shares or
other securities, cash, or other property to be received by the stockholders hereunder, (b) any term of the Certificate of
Incorporation or the Bylaws, other than changes permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law comparable to
those permitted by Section 10.05 of the Massachusetts Business Corporation Act, or (c) any of the terms and
conditions of this Plan of Domestication if such alteration or change would adversely affect the holders of any class or
series of stock of the Company in any material respect.

11.        Abandonment or Deferral. At any time before the Effective Date, this Plan of Domestication may be
terminated and the Domestication may be abandoned by the Board, notwithstanding the approval of this Plan of
Domestication by the stockholders of the Company or the consummation of the Domestication may be deferred for a
reasonable period of time if, in the opinion of the Board, such action would be in the best interests of the Company. In
the event of termination of this Plan of Domestication, this Plan of Domestication shall become void and of no effect
and there shall be no liability on the part of the Company, the Board or the Company’s stockholders with respect
thereto, except that the Company shall pay all expenses incurred in connection with the Domestication or in respect of
this Plan of Domestication or relating thereto.

This Plan of Domestication has been adopted by the Board as of March 23, 2018.

In Witness Whereof, the undersigned has caused this Plan of Domestication to be signed as of _________________,
2018.

Anika Therapeutics,
Inc. 
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  (a Massachusetts
Corporation)

By:
Chief
Executive
Officer
and
President
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APPENDIX B

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
ANIKA THERAPEUTICS, INC.

Article I

The name of this corporation is Anika Therapeutics, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

Article II

The address of the Corporation’s registered office in the State of Delaware is 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington,
County of New Castle, Delaware 19808. The name of its registered agent at such address is Corporation Service
Company.

Article III

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which a corporation may be organized
under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “General Corporation Law”).

Article IV

A.       Classes of Stock and Authorized Shares. The Corporation is authorized to issue two classes of capital stock to
be designated, respectively, Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Common Stock”), and Preferred Stock, par
value $0.01 per share (“Preferred Stock”). The total number of shares of capital stock that the Corporation is authorized
to issue is ____________, of which ____________ shares shall be Common Stock and 1,250,000 shares shall be
Preferred Stock.
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B.       Rights, Powers, Preferences and Restrictions of Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors is hereby expressly
authorized, by resolution or resolutions thereof and the filing of a certificate pursuant to the General Corporation Law
(a “Preferred Stock Designation”), to provide, out of the unissued shares of Preferred Stock, for one or more series of
Preferred Stock and, with respect to each such series, to fix the number of shares constituting such series and the
designation of such series, the voting powers, if any, of the shares of such series, and the preferences and relative,
participating, optional or other special rights, if any, and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of the
shares of such series. The number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock may be increased or decreased (but not
below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting
power of the capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon, voting as a single class, irrespective of the
provisions of Section 242(b)(2) of the General Corporation Law.

C.       Rights of Common Stock. The relative powers, rights, qualifications, limitations and restrictions granted to or
imposed on the shares of Common Stock are as follows:

1.       General. The voting powers and dividend and liquidation rights and preferences, if any, of the holders of
Common Stock are subject to and qualified by the rights of the holders of Preferred Stock of any series as may be
designated by the Board of Directors upon any issuance of Preferred Stock of any series.

2.       Voting Rights. Except as may be otherwise provided by this Certificate of Incorporation, a Preferred Stock
Designation or by applicable law, the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled to one vote for each share upon each
matter presented to the stockholders of the Corporation; provided that, except as otherwise required by law, holders of
Common Stock shall not be entitled to vote on any amendment to this Certificate of Incorporation or a Preferred Stock
Designation that relates solely to the terms of one or more outstanding series of Preferred Stock if the holders of such
affected series are entitled, either separately or together as a class with the holders of one or more other such series, to
vote thereon pursuant to this Certificate of Incorporation, a Preferred Stock Designation or the General Corporation
Law. The number of authorized shares of Common Stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number of
shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the capital
stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon, voting as a single class, irrespective of the provisions of Section
242(b)(2) of the General Corporation Law.

3.       Dividends. Dividends may be declared and paid on Common Stock from funds lawfully available therefor as
and when determined by the Board of Directors and subject to any preferential dividend or other rights of any then
outstanding Preferred Stock and to the requirements of applicable law.

54

Edgar Filing: TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD - Form 20-F/A

56



4.       Liquidation. Upon the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders
of Common Stock will be entitled to receive all assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders,
subject to any preferential or other rights of any then outstanding Preferred Stock.

Article V

A.       Amendment of Bylaws by Board. In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred upon it by the
General Corporation Law, and subject to the terms of any Preferred Stock Designation, the Board of Directors is
expressly authorized and empowered to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation.

B.       Amendment of Bylaws by Stockholders. In addition to the amendment of the Bylaws by the Board of Directors
pursuant to Section A of this Article V, the stockholders of the Corporation also may amend the Bylaws pursuant to
this Section B of this Article V; provided, however, that, in addition to any other vote required by this Certificate of
Incorporation, a Preferred Stock Designation or the Bylaws of the Corporation, the stockholders may not adopt,
amend, alter or repeal Article I, II, VI or VIII or Section 7.6 of the Bylaws, or adopt any provision inconsistent
therewith, unless such action is approved by the affirmative vote of at least seventy-five percent of the outstanding
voting power of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon.

Article VI

A.       Authority of Board. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of
the Board of Directors. In addition to the powers and authority expressly conferred by statute or by this Certificate of
Incorporation or the Bylaws of the Corporation, the Board of Directors is hereby empowered to exercise all such
powers and do all such acts and things as may be exercised or done by the Corporation.

B.       Board Size. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect additional directors
pursuant to any Preferred Stock Designation, the total number of authorized directors constituting the Board of
Directors shall consist of not less than three members nor more than nine members. The number of directors may be
decreased at any time and from time to time by a majority of the directors then in office, but only to eliminate
vacancies existing by reason of the death, resignation, removal or expiration of the term of one or more directors.

C.       Classified Board Structure. The directors, other than any who may be elected by the holders of any series of
Preferred Stock pursuant to any Preferred Stock Designation (“Preferred Stock Directors”), shall be divided into three
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classes hereby designated Class I, Class II and Class III, as nearly equal in number as possible. No one class shall
have more than one director more than any other class. The Board of Directors may assign members of the Board of
Directors already in office to such classes at the time such classification becomes effective. The term of office of the
initial Class I directors shall expire at the first annual meeting of the stockholders following the effectiveness of this
Certificate of Incorporation (the “Effective Time”), the term of office of the initial Class II directors shall expire at the
second annual meeting of the stockholders following the Effective Time, and the term of office of the initial Class III
directors shall expire at the third annual meeting of the stockholders following the Effective Time. At each annual
meeting of stockholders, commencing with the first annual meeting of stockholders following the Effective Time,
each of the successors elected to replace the directors of a Class whose term shall have expired at such annual meeting
shall be elected to hold office until the third annual meeting next succeeding his or her election and until his or her
respective successor shall have been duly elected and qualified or until his or her earlier death, resignation, or
removal. In case of any increase or decrease, from time to time, in the number of directors (other than any Preferred
Stock Directors), the number of directors in each class shall be apportioned as nearly equal as possible so that no one
class has more than one director more than any other class.

D.       Removal; Vacancies. Any director (other than any Preferred Stock Director) may be removed from office by
the stockholders of the Corporation only for cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least seventy-five
percent of the outstanding voting power of the stockholders entitled to vote thereon. Vacancies occurring on the Board
of Directors for any reason and newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the authorized number of
directors may be filled exclusively pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors and not by the
stockholders. A person elected to fill a vacancy or newly created directorship shall hold office until the next election
of the class for which such director shall have been chosen and until his or her successor shall be duly elected and
qualified.

E.       Quorum; Vote Required for Action. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the directors entitled to cast a
majority of the votes of the he total number of authorized directors, whether or not there exist any vacancies, in
previously authorized directorships shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In the event one or more
of the directors shall be disqualified to vote at any meeting, then the required quorum shall be reduced by one for each
such director so disqualified; provided, however, that in no case shall less than one-third of the total number of
directors constitute a quorum. In the absence of a quorum at any such meeting, a majority of the directors present may
adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum
shall be present. Except in cases in which this Certificate of Incorporation, the Bylaws of the Corporation or
applicable law otherwise provides, a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the directors present at a meeting at
which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.
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Article VII

No stockholder will be permitted to cumulate votes in any election of directors. The election of directors need not be
by written ballot unless the Bylaws of the Corporation shall so provide.

Article VIII

A.       Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders may be called only by the President of the Corporation
or the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Business transacted at any special meeting of
stockholders shall be limited to the purposes stated in the notice.

B.       No Stockholder Action by Written Consent. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock,
any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be effected at a duly called
annual or special meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation and may not be effected by any consent in writing (or
by electronic communication) by such stockholders.

Article IX

A.       The Corporation shall indemnify (and advance expenses to) its officers and directors to the full extent permitted
by the General Corporation Law, as amended from time to time.

B.       To the fullest extent permitted by law, no director of the Corporation shall be personally liable to the
Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a director, notwithstanding
any provision of law imposing such liability.

C.        No amendment to or repeal of this provision, nor the adoption of any provision of the Certificate of
Incorporation inconsistent with this Article IX, shall apply to or have any effect on (1) the liability or alleged liability
of any director of the Corporation or the (2) indemnification and advancement rights of any director or officer, in each
case, for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director or officer occurring prior to such amendment or
repeal. If the General Corporation Law is amended to permit further elimination or limitation of the personal liability
of directors or to permit greater indemnification or advancement rights of directors and officers, then the directors and
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officers of the Corporation shall be protected from liability (whether through exculpation, indemnification or
advancement rights) to the fullest extent permitted by the General Corporation Law as so amended.

Article X

The Corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of
Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon stockholders herein
are granted subject to this reservation. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Certificate of Incorporation or
applicable law and in addition to any affirmative vote of the holders of any particular class of capital stock of the
Corporation required by applicable law or by a Preferred Stock Designation or this Certificate of Incorporation, the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least seventy-five percent of the voting power of the shares of the then
outstanding voting stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon, voting together as a single class, shall be required
to amend alter or repeal Articles V, VI, VIII or IX, or this Article X, of this Certificate of Incorporation.

Article XII

The name and mailing address of the incorporator are as follows:

Name: Joseph Darling
Mailing Address:    32 Wiggins Avenue

Bedford, Massachusetts 01730

* * *
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In Witness Whereof, this Certificate of Incorporation has been signed on behalf of the Corporation by the sole
incorporator as of March __, 2018.

Sole Incorporator
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APPENDIX C
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OF

ANIKA THERAPEUTICS, INC.
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(Adopted as of                        , 2018)
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ARTICLE I
Meetings of Stockholders

Section 1.1.                 Annual Meetings. If required by applicable law, an annual meeting of stockholders shall be held
for the election of directors at such date, time and place, if any, either within or without the State of Delaware, as may
be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Anika Therapeutics, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(the “Corporation”) from time to time. Any other proper business may be transacted at the annual meeting.

Section 1.2.                 Special Meetings. Special meetings of stockholders for any purpose or purposes, unless
otherwise prescribed by statute or by the Corporation’s certificate of incorporation, as amended, restated, supplemented
or otherwise modified (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), may be called at any time by the President or by the
Chairman of the Board. Business transacted at any special meeting of stockholders shall be limited to the purposes
stated in the notice.

Section 1.3.                 Notice of Meetings. Whenever stockholders are required or permitted to take any action at a
meeting, a notice of the meeting shall be given that shall state the place, if any, date and hour of the meeting, the
means of remote communications, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be deemed to be present in
person and vote at such meeting, the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting (if
such date is different from the record date for stockholders entitled to notice of the meeting) and, in the case of a
special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. Unless otherwise provided by law, the
Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the notice of any meeting shall be given not less than ten nor more than
sixty days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote at the meeting as of the record date for
determining the stockholders entitled to notice of the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be given
when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder at such stockholder’s address as
it appears on the records of the Corporation.

Section 1.4.                 Adjournments. Any meeting of stockholders, annual or special, may adjourn from time to time
to reconvene at the same or some other place, and notice need not be given of any such adjourned meeting if the time
and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the
Corporation may transact any business that might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the adjournment is
for more than thirty days, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to
vote at the meeting. If after the adjournment a new record date for determination of stockholders entitled to vote is
fixed for the adjourned meeting, the Board shall fix as the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice
of such adjourned meeting the same or an earlier date as that fixed for determination of stockholders entitled to vote at
the adjourned meeting, and shall give notice of the adjourned meeting to each stockholder of record as of the record
date so fixed for notice of such adjourned meeting.
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Section 1.5.                 Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws,
at each meeting of stockholders the presence in person or by proxy of the holders of not less than majority in voting
power of the outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote at the meeting shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a
quorum. In the absence of a quorum, then either (a) the chairperson of the meeting or (b) a majority in voting power of
the stockholders so present (in person or by proxy) and entitled to vote may adjourn the meeting from time to time in
the manner provided in Section 1.4 of these Bylaws until a quorum shall attend. Shares of its own stock belonging to
the Corporation or to another corporation, if a majority of the shares entitled to vote in the election of directors of such
other corporation is held, directly or indirectly, by the Corporation, shall neither be entitled to vote nor be counted for
quorum purposes; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not limit the right of the Corporation or any subsidiary
of the Corporation to vote stock, including its own stock, held by it in a fiduciary capacity.

Section 1.6.                 Organization. Meetings of stockholders shall be presided over by the Chief Executive Officer
or, in his or her absence, by the President or, in his or her absence, by a Vice President or, in the absence of the
foregoing persons, by a chairperson designated by the Board or, in the absence of such designation, by a chairperson
chosen at the meeting. The Secretary shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in his or her absence the chairperson of
the meeting may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting.

Section 1.7.                 Voting; Proxies. Except as otherwise provided by or pursuant to the provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation, each stockholder entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders shall be entitled to one
vote for each share of stock held by such stockholder that has voting power upon the matter in question. Each
stockholder entitled to vote at a meeting of stockholders may authorize another person or persons to act for such
stockholder by proxy, but no such proxy shall be voted or acted upon after three years from its date, unless the proxy
provides for a longer period. A proxy shall be irrevocable if it states that it is irrevocable and if, and only as long as, it
is coupled with an interest sufficient in law to support an irrevocable power. A stockholder may revoke any proxy that
is not irrevocable by attending the meeting and voting in person or by delivering to the Secretary of the Corporation a
revocation of the proxy or a new proxy bearing a later date. Voting at meetings of stockholders need not be by written
ballot. At meetings of stockholders for the election of directors at which a quorum is present where the number of
director nominees is equal to the number of positions on the Board to be filled through election and proxies are
solicited for such election of directors solely by the Corporation, the affirmative vote of a majority in voting power of
the shares of stock of the Corporation that are voting in the election of directors shall be required to elect. In all other
meetings of stockholders for the election of directors at which a quorum is present, a plurality of the votes cast shall
be sufficient to elect. All other questions presented to the stockholders at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall,
unless otherwise provided by the Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws, the rules or regulations of any stock
exchange applicable to the Corporation, or applicable law or pursuant to any regulation applicable to the Corporation
or its securities, be decided by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority in voting power of the shares of stock
of the Corporation that are voting on the matter.
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Section 1.8.                 Fixing Date for Determination of Stockholders of Record.

(a)                In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of any meeting of
stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the Board may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date
upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board, and which record date shall, unless
otherwise required by law, not be more than sixty nor less than ten days before the date of such meeting. If the Board
so fixes a date, such date shall also be the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to vote at such meeting
unless the Board determines, at the time it fixes such record date, that a later date on or before the date of the meeting
shall be the date for making such determination. If no record date is fixed by the Board, the record date for
determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business
on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day
next preceding the day on which the meeting is held. A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or
to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting, provided, however, that the Board
may fix a new record date for determination of stockholders entitled to vote at the adjourned meeting, and in such case
shall also fix as the record date for stockholders entitled to notice of such adjourned meeting the same or an earlier
date as that fixed for determination of stockholders entitled to vote in accordance herewith at the adjourned meeting.

(b)               In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend
or other distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion
or exchange of stock or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board may fix a record date, which shall not be
more than sixty days prior to such other action. If no such record date is fixed, the record date for determining
stockholders for any such purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board adopts the
resolution relating thereto.

Section 1.9.                 List of Stockholders Entitled to Vote. The officer who has charge of the stock ledger shall
prepare and make, at least ten days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled
to vote at the meeting (provided, however, if the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to vote is less
than ten days before the date of the meeting, the list shall reflect the stockholders entitled to vote as of the tenth day
before the meeting date), arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each stockholder and the number
of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for
any purpose germane to the meeting at least ten days prior to the meeting (a) on a reasonably accessible electronic
network, provided that the information required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of meeting or
(b) during ordinary business hours at the principal place of business of the Corporation. If the meeting is to be held at
a place, then a list of stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting shall be produced and kept at the time and place of
the meeting during the whole time thereof and may be examined by any stockholder who is present. If the meeting is
to be held solely by means of remote communication, then the list shall also be open to the examination of any
stockholder during the whole time of the meeting on a reasonably accessible electronic network, and the information
required to access such list shall be provided with the notice of the meeting. Except as otherwise provided by law, the
stock ledger shall be the only evidence as to who are the stockholders entitled to examine the list of stockholders
required by this Section 1.9 or to vote in person or by proxy at any meeting of stockholders.
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Section 1.10.             Action by Written or Electronic Consent of Stockholders. The stockholders of the Corporation
may not take any action by written or electronic consent of stockholders to action without a meeting.

Section 1.11.             Inspectors of Election. The Corporation shall, in advance of any meeting of stockholders, appoint
one or more inspectors of election, who may be employees of the Corporation, to act at the meeting or any
adjournment thereof and to make a written report thereof. The Corporation may designate one or more persons as
alternate inspectors to replace any inspector who fails to act. In the event that no inspector so appointed or designated
is able to act at a meeting of stockholders, the person presiding at the meeting shall appoint one or more inspectors to
act at the meeting. Each inspector, before entering upon the discharge of his or her duties, shall take and sign an oath
to execute faithfully the duties of inspector with strict impartiality and according to the best of his or her ability. The
inspector or inspectors so appointed or designated shall (a) ascertain the number of shares of capital stock of the
Corporation outstanding and the voting power of each such share, (b) determine the shares of capital stock of the
Corporation represented at the meeting and the validity of proxies and ballots, (c) count all votes and ballots, (d)
determine and retain for a reasonable period a record of the disposition of any challenges made to any determination
by the inspectors, and (e) certify their determination of the number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation
represented at the meeting and such inspectors' count of all votes and ballots. Such certification and report shall
specify such other information as may be required by law. In determining the validity and counting of proxies and
ballots cast at any meeting of stockholders of the Corporation, the inspectors may consider such information as is
permitted by applicable law. No person who is a candidate for an office at an election may serve as an inspector at
such election.
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Section 1.12.             Conduct of Meetings. The date and time of the opening and the closing of the polls for each
matter upon which the stockholders will vote at a meeting shall be announced at the meeting by the person presiding
over the meeting. The Board may adopt by resolution such rules and regulations for the conduct of the meeting of
stockholders as it shall deem appropriate. Except to the extent inconsistent with such rules and regulations as adopted
by the Board, the person presiding over any meeting of stockholders shall have the right and authority to convene and
(for any or no reason) to adjourn the meeting, to prescribe such rules, regulations and procedures and to do all such
acts as, in the judgment of such presiding person, are appropriate for the proper conduct of the meeting. Such rules,
regulations or procedures, whether adopted by the Board or prescribed by the presiding person of the meeting, may
include the following: (a) the establishment of an agenda or order of business for the meeting; (b) rules and procedures
for maintaining order at the meeting and the safety of those present; (c) limitations on attendance at or participation in
the meeting to stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, their duly authorized and constituted proxies or such other
persons as the presiding person of the meeting shall determine; (d) restrictions on entry to the meeting after the time
fixed for the commencement thereof; and (e) limitations on the time allotted to questions or comments by participants.
The presiding person at any meeting of stockholders, in addition to making any other determinations that may be
appropriate to the conduct of the meeting, shall, if the facts warrant, determine and declare to the meeting that a matter
or business was not properly brought before the meeting and if such presiding person should so determine, such
presiding person shall so declare to the meeting and any such matter or business not properly brought before the
meeting shall not be transacted or considered. Unless and to the extent determined by the Board or the person
presiding over the meeting, meetings of stockholders shall not be required to be held in accordance with the rules of
parliamentary procedure.

Section 1.13.             Notice of Stockholder Business and Nominations.

(a)                Annual Meetings of Stockholders.

(i)                 Nominations of persons for election to the Board of the Corporation and the proposal of other business to
be considered by the stockholders may be made at an annual meeting of stockholders only (A) pursuant to the
Corporation’s notice of meeting (or any supplement thereto), (B) by or at the direction of the Board or any committee
thereof or (C) by any stockholder of the Corporation who was a stockholder of record of the Corporation at the time
the notice provided for in this Section 1.13 is delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation, who is entitled to vote at
the meeting and who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this Section 1.13.

(ii)               For any nominations or other business to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder
pursuant to clause (C) of paragraph (a)(i) of this Section 1.13, the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in
writing to the Secretary of the Corporation and any such proposed business (other than the nominations of persons for
election to the Board) must constitute a proper matter for stockholder action. To be timely, a stockholder's notice shall
be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not later than the close of business
on the ninetieth day, nor earlier than the close of business on the one hundred twentieth day, prior to the first
anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting (provided, however, that in the event that no annual meeting was
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held in the previous year or if the date of the annual meeting is more than thirty days before or more than seventy days
after such anniversary date, notice by the stockholder must be so delivered not earlier than the close of business on the
one hundred twentieth day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the
ninetieth day prior to such annual meeting or the tenth day following the day on which public announcement of the
date of such meeting is first made by the Corporation). In no event shall the public announcement of an adjournment
or postponement of an annual meeting commence a new time period (or extend any time period) for the giving of a
stockholder's notice as described above. Such stockholder's notice shall set forth: (A) as to each person whom the
stockholder proposes to nominate for election as a director (I) all information relating to such person that is required to
be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors in an election contest, or is otherwise required, in each
case pursuant to and in accordance with Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and (II) such person's written consent to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected; (B) as to any other business that the
stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting, a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the
meeting, the text of the proposal or business (including the text of any resolutions proposed for consideration and in
the event that such business includes a proposal to amend the Bylaws of the Corporation, the language of the proposed
amendment), the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting and any material interest in such business of
such stockholder and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal is made; and (C) as to the stockholder
giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or proposal is made (I) the name
and address of such stockholder, as they appear on the Corporation’s books, and of such beneficial owner, (II) the class
or series and number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation which are owned beneficially and of record by such
stockholder and such beneficial owner, (III) a description of any agreement, arrangement or understanding with
respect to the nomination or proposal between or among such stockholder and/or such beneficial owner, any of their
respective affiliates or associates, and any others acting in concert with any of the foregoing, including, in the case of
a nomination, the nominee, (IV) a description of any agreement, arrangement or understanding (including any
derivative or short positions, profit interests, options, warrants, convertible securities, stock appreciation or similar
rights, hedging transactions, and borrowed or loaned shares) that has been entered into as of the date of the
stockholder's notice by, or on behalf of, such stockholder and such beneficial owners, whether or not such instrument
or right shall be subject to settlement in underlying shares of capital stock of the Corporation, the effect or intent of
which is to mitigate loss to, manage risk or benefit of share price changes for, or increase or decrease the voting power
of, such stockholder or such beneficial owner, with respect to securities of the Corporation, (V) a representation that
the stockholder is a holder of record of stock of the Corporation entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear
in person or by proxy at the meeting to propose such business or nomination, (VI) a representation whether the
stockholder or the beneficial owner, if any, intends or is part of a group that intends (x) to deliver a proxy statement
and/or form of proxy to holders of at least the percentage of the Corporation’s outstanding capital stock required to
approve or adopt the proposal or elect the nominee and/or (y) otherwise to solicit proxies or votes from stockholders
in support of such proposal or nomination, and (VII) any other information relating to such stockholder and beneficial
owner, if any, required to be disclosed in a proxy statement or other filings required to be made in connection with
solicitations of proxies for, as applicable, the proposal and/or for the election of directors in an election contest
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder. The foregoing notice requirements of this Section 1.13 shall be deemed satisfied by a stockholder with
respect to business other than a nomination if the stockholder has notified the Corporation of his, her or its intention to
present a proposal at an annual meeting in compliance with applicable rules and regulations promulgated under the
Exchange Act and such stockholder's proposal has been included in a proxy statement that has been prepared by the
Corporation to solicit proxies for such annual meeting. The Corporation may require any proposed nominee to furnish
such other information as the Corporation may reasonably require to determine the eligibility of such proposed
nominee to serve as a director of the Corporation.
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(iii)             Notwithstanding anything in the second sentence of paragraph (a)(ii) of this Section 1.13 to the contrary,
in the event that the number of directors to be elected to the Board of the Corporation at the annual meeting is
increased effective after the time period for which nominations would otherwise be due under paragraph (a)(ii) of this
Section 1.13 and there is no public announcement by the Corporation naming the nominees for the additional
directorships at least one hundred days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting, a
stockholder's notice required by this Section 1.13 shall also be considered timely, but only with respect to nominees
for the additional directorships, if it shall be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the
Corporation not later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which such public
announcement is first made by the Corporation.

(b)               Special Meetings of Stockholders. Only such business shall be conducted at a special meeting of
stockholders as shall have been brought before the meeting pursuant to the Corporation’s notice of meeting.
Nominations of persons for election to the Board may be made at a special meeting of stockholders at which directors
are to be elected pursuant to the Corporation’s notice of meeting (i) by or at the direction of the Board or any
committee thereof or (ii) provided that the Board has determined that directors shall be elected at such meeting, by
any stockholder of the Corporation who is a stockholder of record at the time the notice provided for in this
Section 1.13 is delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation, who is entitled to vote at the meeting and upon such
election and who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this Section 1.13. In the event the Corporation calls
a special meeting of stockholders for the purpose of electing one or more directors to the Board, any such stockholder
entitled to vote in such election of directors may nominate a person or persons (as the case may be) for election to
such position(s) as specified in the Corporation’s notice of meeting, if the stockholder's notice required by paragraph
(a)(ii) of this Section 1.13 shall be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not
earlier than the close of business on the one hundred twentieth day prior to such special meeting and not later than the
close of business on the later of the ninetieth day prior to such special meeting or the tenth day following the day on
which public announcement is first made of the date of the special meeting and of the nominees proposed by the
Board to be elected at such meeting. In no event shall the public announcement of an adjournment or postponement of
a special meeting commence a new time period (or extend any time period) for the giving of a stockholder's notice as
described above.
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(c)                General.

(i)                 Except as otherwise expressly provided in any applicable rule or regulation promulgated under the
Exchange Act, only such persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 1.13
shall be eligible to be elected at an annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Corporation to serve as directors
and only such business shall be conducted at a meeting of stockholders as shall have been brought before the meeting
in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 1.13. Except as otherwise provided by law, the chairperson
of the meeting shall have the power and duty (A) to determine whether a nomination or any business proposed to be
brought before the meeting was made or proposed, as the case may be, in accordance with the procedures set forth in
this Section 1.13 (including whether the stockholder or beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or
proposal is made solicited (or is part of a group that solicited) or did not so solicit, as the case may be, proxies or votes
in support of such stockholder's nominee or proposal in compliance with such stockholder's representation as required
by clause (a)(ii)(C)(VI) of this Section 1.13) and (B) if any proposed nomination or business was not made or
proposed in compliance with this Section 1.13, to declare that such nomination shall be disregarded or that such
proposed business shall not be transacted. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 1.13, unless
otherwise required by law, if the stockholder (or a qualified representative of the stockholder) does not appear at the
annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Corporation to present a nomination or proposed business, such
nomination shall be disregarded and such proposed business shall not be transacted, notwithstanding that proxies in
respect of such vote may have been received by the Corporation. For purposes of this Section 1.13, to be considered a
qualified representative of the stockholder, a person must be a duly authorized officer, manager or partner of such
stockholder or must be authorized by a writing executed by such stockholder or an electronic transmission delivered
by such stockholder to act for such stockholder as proxy at the meeting of stockholders and such person must produce
such writing or electronic transmission, or a reliable reproduction of the writing or electronic transmission, at the
meeting of stockholders.

(ii)               For purposes of this Section 1.13, “public announcement” shall include disclosure in a press release
reported by the Dow Jones News Service, Associated Press or other national news service or in a document publicly
filed by the Corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(iii)             Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 1.13, a stockholder shall also comply with all
applicable requirements of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder with respect to the
matters set forth in this Section 1.13; provided however, that any references in these Bylaws to the Exchange Act or
the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder are not intended to and shall not limit any requirements applicable to
nominations or proposals as to any other business to be considered pursuant to this Section 1.13 (including paragraphs
(a)(i)(C) and (b) hereof), and compliance with paragraphs (a)(i)(C) and (b) of this Section 1.13 shall be the exclusive
means for a stockholder to make nominations or submit other business (other than, as provided in the penultimate
sentence of (a)(ii), business other than nominations brought properly under and in compliance with Rule 14a-8 of the
Exchange Act, as may be amended from time to time). Nothing in this Section 1.13 shall be deemed to affect any
rights (A) of stockholders to request inclusion of proposals or nominations in the Corporation’s proxy statement
pursuant to applicable rules and regulations promulgated under the Exchange Act or (B) of the holders of any series of
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Preferred Stock to elect directors pursuant to any applicable provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation.

ARTICLE II
Board

Section 2.1.                 Number; Qualifications. Subject to the Certificate of Incorporation, the Board shall consist of
not less than three members nor more than nine members, the number thereof to be determined from time to time by
resolution of the Whole Board (as defined below). Directors need not be stockholders. For purposes of these Bylaws,
the term “Whole Board” shall mean the total number of authorized directors, whether or not there exist any vacancies in
previously authorized directorships.

65

Edgar Filing: TARO PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LTD - Form 20-F/A

76



Section 2.2.                 Classification; Resignation; Vacancies. The Board shall be divided into three classes (Class I,
Class II and Class III) and shall serve staggered three-year terms as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation. Any
director may resign at any time upon notice given in writing or by electronic transmission to the Corporation. Such
resignation shall take effect when such notice is given unless the notice specifies (a) a later effective date, or (b) an
effective date determined upon the happening of an event or events. Unless otherwise specified in the notice of
resignation, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Unless otherwise provided
by law or the Certificate of Incorporation, any newly created directorship or any vacancy occurring in the Board for
any cause may be filled only by a majority of the remaining members of the Board, although such majority is less than
a quorum, and each director so elected shall hold office until the expiration of the term of office of the director whom
he or she has replaced or until his or her successor is elected and qualified.

Section 2.3.                 Removal.	Any one or more or all of the directors may be removed, but only for cause, by the
holders of at least seventy-five percent of the then issued and outstanding shares of capital stock then entitled to vote
at an election of directors.

Section 2.4.                 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such places within or without
the State of Delaware and at such times as the Board may from time to time determine.

Section 2.5.                 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be held at any time or place within or
without the State of Delaware whenever called by the Chief Executive Officer or by any two members of the Board.
Notice of a special meeting of the Board shall be given by the person or persons calling the meeting either by first
class United States mail at least three days before such special meeting, or by overnight mail, courier service,
electronic transmission, or hand delivery at least 48 hours before the special meeting or such shorter period as is
reasonable under the circumstances.

Section 2.6.                 Telephonic Meetings Permitted. Members of the Board, or any committee designated by the
Board, may participate in a meeting thereof by means of conference telephone or other communications equipment by
means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting pursuant to
this by-law shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

Section 2.7.                 Quorum; Vote Required for Action. At all meetings of the Board the directors entitled to cast a
majority of the votes of the Whole Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In the event one or
more of the directors shall be disqualified to vote at any meeting, then the required quorum shall be reduced by one
for each such director so disqualified; provided, however, that in no case shall less than one-third of the total number
of directors constitute a quorum. Except in cases in which the Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws or applicable
law otherwise provides, a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the directors present at a meeting at which a
quorum is present shall be the act of the Board.
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Section 2.8.                 Organization. Meetings of the Board shall be presided over by the Board Chair (as defined in
Section 2.10), if any, or, in the absence of a Board Chair, by another director chosen by the participating directors to
act as chairperson at the meeting. The Secretary shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in his or her absence, the
Board Chair or chairperson presiding at the meeting may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting.

Section 2.9.                 Action by Unanimous Consent of Directors. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board, or of any
committee thereof, may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board or such committee, as the case may
be, consent thereto in writing or by electronic transmission and the writing or writings or electronic transmissions are
filed with the minutes of proceedings of the board or committee in accordance with applicable law.

Section 2.10.             Chair and Vice Chair of the Board. The Board may elect one or more of its members to serve as
Chair of the Board (the “Board Chair”) or as Vice Chair of the Board and may fill any vacancy in such position at such
time and in such manner as the Board shall determine. The Board Chair, if any, shall preside at all meetings of the
Board at which he or she is present and shall perform such duties and possess such powers as are designated by the
Board. If the Board of Director appoints a Vice Chair of the Board, he or she shall, in the absence or disability of the
Board Chair perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Board Chair and shall perform such other duties and
possess such other powers as may from time to time be designated by the Board. The fact that a person serves as
Board Chair or Vice Chair of the Board shall not make such person considered an officer of the Corporation.
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ARTICLE III
Committees

Section 3.1.                 Committees. The Board may designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of
one or more of the directors of the Corporation. The Board may designate one or more directors as alternate members
of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. In the
absence or disqualification of a member of the committee, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and
not disqualified from voting, whether or not he, she or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another
member of the Board to act at the meeting in place of any such absent or disqualified member. Any such committee,
to the extent permitted by law and to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board, shall have and may exercise
all the powers and authority of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may
authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers that may require it.

Section 3.2.                 Committee Rules. Unless the Board otherwise provides, each committee designated by the
Board may make, alter and repeal rules for the conduct of its business. In the absence of such rules each committee
shall conduct its business in the same manner as the Board conducts its business pursuant to Article II of these
Bylaws.

ARTICLE IV
Officers

Section 4.1.                 Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a Chief Executive Officer, a President,
a Chief Financial Officer, a Treasurer, a Secretary, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time
determine, which may include and one or more Vice Presidents, Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries. Each
of the Corporation’s officers shall be elected by the Board, each to have such authority, functions or duties as set forth
in these Bylaws or as determined by the Board. Each officer shall be chosen by the Board and shall hold office for
such term as may be prescribed by the Board and until such person’s successor shall have been duly chosen and
qualified, or until such person's earlier death, disqualification, resignation or removal.

Section 4.2.                 Removal, Resignation and Vacancies. Any officer of the Corporation may be removed, with or
without cause, by the Board, without prejudice to the rights, if any, of such officer under any contract to which it is a
party. Any officer may resign at any time upon notice given in writing or by electronic transmission to the
Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect when such notice is given unless the notice specifies (a) a later
effective date, or (b) an effective date determined upon the happening of an event or events, such as the failure to
receive the required vote for reelection as a director and the acceptance of such resignation by the Board. Unless
otherwise specified in the notice of resignation, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it
effective. If any vacancy occurs in any office of the Corporation, the Board may elect a successor to fill such vacancy
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for the remainder of the unexpired term and until a successor shall have been duly chosen and qualified.

Section 4.3.                 Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall have general supervision and
direction of the business and affairs of the Corporation and shall be responsible for corporate policy and strategy.
Unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws, all other officers of the Corporation shall report directly to the Chief
Executive Officer or as otherwise determined by the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall
preside at meetings of the stockholders. In the absence of a separately appointed President, the Chief Executive
Officer shall be the President.

Section 4.4.                 President. The President shall have such powers and duties as the Board may from time to time
determine and, in the absence of a separately appointed Chief Operating Officer, shall have the powers and duties
ascribed to the Chief Operating Officer. The President shall have the power to affix the signature of the Corporation to
all contracts that have been authorized by the Board or the Chief Executive Officer. The President shall, when
requested, counsel with and advise the other officers of the Corporation and shall perform such other duties as such
officer may agree with the Chief Executive Officer.

Section 4.5.                 Chief Operating Officer. The Chief Operating Officer shall exercise all the powers and perform
the duties of the office of the chief operating officer of the Corporation, with general responsibility for the
management and control of the operations of the Corporation. The Chief Operating Officer shall, when requested,
counsel with and advise the other officers of the Corporation and shall perform such other duties as such officer may
agree with the Chief Executive Officer or as the Board may from time to time determine.

Section 4.6.                 Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer shall exercise all the powers and perform
the duties of the office of the chief financial officer and in general have overall supervision of the financial operations
of the Corporation and shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and
records of accounts of the properties and business transactions of the Corporation, including accounts of its assets,
liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital retained earnings, and shares. The Chief Financial Officer
shall, when requested, counsel with and advise the other officers of the Corporation and shall perform such other
duties as such officer may agree with the Chief Executive Officer or as the Board may from time to time determine. In
the absence of a separately appointed Treasurer, the Chief Financial Officer shall be the Treasurer.
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Section 4.7.                 Vice Presidents. Each Vice President shall have such powers and duties as shall be prescribed
by his or her superior officer or the Chief Executive Officer. A Vice President shall, when requested, counsel with and
advise the other officers of the Corporation and shall perform such other duties as such officer may agree with the
Chief Executive Officer or as the Board may from time to time determine.

Section 4.8.                 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall supervise and be responsible for all the funds and securities of
the Corporation, the deposit of all moneys and other valuables to the credit of the Corporation in depositories of the
Corporation, borrowings and compliance with the provisions of all indentures, agreements and instruments governing
such borrowings to which the Corporation is a party, the disbursement of funds of the Corporation and the investment
of its funds, and in general shall perform all of the duties incident to the office of the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall,
when requested, counsel with and advise the other officers of the Corporation and shall perform such other duties as
such officer may agree with the Chief Executive Officer or as the Board may from time to time determine.

Section 4.9.                 Secretary. The powers and duties of the Secretary are to: (a) act as secretary at all meetings of
the Board, of the committees of the Board and of the stockholders and to record the proceedings of such meetings in a
book or books to be kept for that purpose; (b) see that all notices required to be given by the Corporation are duly
given and served; (c) act as custodian of the seal of the Corporation and affix the seal or cause it to be affixed to all
certificates of stock of the Corporation and to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Corporation
under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws; (d) have charge of the books,
records and papers of the Corporation and see that the reports, statements and other documents required by law to be
kept and filed are properly kept and filed; and (e) perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary. The
Secretary shall, when requested, counsel with and advise the other officers of the Corporation and shall perform such
other duties as such officer may agree with the Chief Executive Officer or as the Board may from time to time
determine.

Section 4.10.             Additional Matters. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer shall have the
authority to designate employees of the Corporation to have the title of Assistant Vice President, Assistant Treasurer
or Assistant Secretary. Any employee so designated shall have the powers and duties determined by the officer
making such designation. The persons upon whom such titles are conferred shall not be deemed officers of the
Corporation unless elected by the Board.

Section 4.11.             Execution of Contracts and Instruments. All contracts, deeds, mortgages, bonds, certificates,
checks, drafts, bills of exchange, notes and other instruments or documents to be executed by or in the name of the
Corporation shall be signed on the corporation’s behalf by such officer or officers, or other person or persons, as may
be so authorized (a) by the Board or (b) subject to any limitations the Board may impose, by the Chief Executive
Officer. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances and, if the Board or Chief Executive Officer
(whichever grants authority) so authorizes or otherwise directs, may be delegated by the authorized officers to other
persons. Unless otherwise provided in such resolution, any resolution of the Board or a committee thereof authorizing
the Corporation to enter into any such instruments or documents or authorizing their execution by or on behalf of the
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Corporation shall be deemed to authorize the execution thereof on its behalf by the Chief Executive Officer, the
President, the Chief Financial Officer or any Vice President (an “Authorized Officer”). Furthermore, each Authorized
Officer shall be authorized to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation in matters arising in the ordinary course of the Corporation’s business and to the extent incident to the
normal performance of such Authorized Officer’s duties.

ARTICLE V
Stock

Section 5.1.                 Certificates. The shares of the Corporation may be certificated or uncertificated in accordance
with the Delaware General Corporation Law, and shall be entered in the books of the Corporation and registered as
they are issued. The issue of shares in uncertificated form shall not affect shares represented by a certificate until the
certificate is surrendered to the Corporation. Any certificates representing shares of the Corporation’s stock shall be in
such form as may be prescribed by law and by the Board, certifying the number and class of shares owned by such
stockholder in the Corporation. Every holder of stock represented by certificates shall be entitled to have a certificate
signed by any two authorized officers of the Corporation certifying the number of shares owned by such holder in the
Corporation. Any of or all the signatures on the certificate may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent or
registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such
officer, transfer agent, or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Corporation with the same
effect as if such person were such officer, transfer agent, or registrar at the date of issue.
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Section 5.2.                 Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificates; Issuance of New Certificates. The Corporation
may issue (a) a new certificate of stock or (b) uncertificated shares in the place of any certificate theretofore issued by
it, alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, and the Corporation may require the owner of the lost, stolen or
destroyed certificate, or such owner's legal representative, to give the Corporation a bond sufficient to indemnify it
against any claim that may be made against it on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of any such
certificate or the issuance of such new certificate.

ARTICLE VI
Indemnification and Advancement of Expenses

Section 6.1.                 Right to Indemnification. The Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law as it presently exists or may hereafter be amended, any person (a “Covered Person”)
who was or is made or is threatened to be made a party or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or proceeding,
whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (a “proceeding”), by reason of the fact that he or she, or a person
for whom he or she is the legal representative, is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or, while a director or
officer of the Corporation, is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent
of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust, enterprise or nonprofit entity, including service with
respect to employee benefit plans, against all liability and loss suffered and expenses (including attorneys’ fees)
reasonably incurred by such Covered Person. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, except as otherwise provided
in Section 6.3 of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall be required to indemnify a Covered Person in connection with a
proceeding (or part thereof) commenced by such Covered Person only if the commencement of such proceeding (or
part thereof) by the Covered Person was authorized in the specific case by the Board of the Corporation.

Section 6.2.                 Prepayment of Expenses. The Corporation shall to the fullest extent not prohibited by
applicable law pay the expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by a Covered Person in defending any proceeding
in advance of its final disposition, provided, however, that, to the extent required by law, such payment of expenses in
advance of the final disposition of the proceeding shall be made only upon receipt of an undertaking by the Covered
Person to repay all amounts advanced if it should be ultimately determined that the Covered Person is not entitled to
be indemnified under this Article VI or otherwise.

Section 6.3.                 Claims. If a claim for indemnification (following the final disposition of such proceeding) or
advancement of expenses under this Article VI is not paid in full within thirty days after a written claim therefor by
the Covered Person has been received by the Corporation, the Covered Person may file suit to recover the unpaid
amount of such claim and, if successful in whole or in part, shall be entitled to be paid the expense of prosecuting such
claim to the fullest extent permitted by law. In any such action the Corporation shall have the burden of proving that
the Covered Person is not entitled to the requested indemnification or advancement of expenses under applicable law.
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Section 6.4.                 Nonexclusivity of Rights. The rights conferred on any Covered Person by this Article VI shall
not be exclusive of any other rights which such Covered Person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute,
provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors
or otherwise.

Section 6.5.                 Other Sources. The Corporation’s obligation, if any, to indemnify or to advance expenses to any
Covered Person who was or is serving at its request as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust, enterprise or nonprofit entity shall be reduced by any amount such Covered Person
may collect as indemnification or advancement of expenses from such other corporation, partnership, joint venture,
trust, enterprise or non-profit enterprise.

Section 6.6.                 Amendment or Repeal. Any right to indemnification or to advancement of expenses of any
Covered Person arising hereunder shall not be eliminated or impaired by an amendment to or repeal of these Bylaws
after the occurrence of the act or omission that is the subject of the civil, criminal, administrative or investigative
action, suit or proceeding for which indemnification or advancement of expenses is sought.

Section 6.7.                 Other Indemnification and Advancement of Expenses. This Article VI shall not limit the right
of the Corporation, to the extent and in the manner permitted by law, to indemnify and to advance expenses to persons
other than Covered Persons when and as authorized by appropriate corporate action.
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ARTICLE VII
Exclusive Forum

Unless the Corporation consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery in the State
of Delaware shall be the sole and exclusive forum for all claims, including claims in the right of the Corporation, (a)
that are based upon a violation of a duty by a current or former director or officer or stockholder in such capacity or
(b) as to which Title 8 of the Delaware Code confers jurisdiction upon the Court of Chancery, except for, as to each of
(a) and (b) above, any claim as to which the Court of Chancery determines that there is an indispensable party not
subject to the jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery (and the indispensable party does not consent to the personal
jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery within ten days following such determination), which is vested in the exclusive
jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the Court of Chancery, or for which the Court of Chancery does not have
subject matter jurisdiction. If any provision or provisions of this Article VII shall be held to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable as applied to any person or entity or circumstance for any reason whatsoever, then, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, the validity, legality and enforceability of such provisions in any other circumstance and of the
remaining provisions of this Article VII (including each portion of any sentence of this Article VII containing any
such provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable that is not itself held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable)
and the application of such provision to other persons or entities and circumstances shall not in any way be affected or
impaired thereby.

ARTICLE VIII
Miscellaneous

Section 8.1.                 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be determined by resolution of the Board.

Section 8.2.                 Seal. The corporate seal shall have the name of the Corporation inscribed thereon and shall be
in such form as may be approved from time to time by the Board.

Section 8.3.                 Method of Notice. Whenever notice is required by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these
Bylaws to be given by the Corporation to any director, committee member or stockholder, personal notice shall not be
required and any such notice may be given in writing (a) by mail, addressed to such director, committee member or
stockholder at his or her address as it appears on the books of the Corporation, or (b) by any other method permitted
by law (including overnight courier service, facsimile, electronic mail or other means of electronic transmission)
directed to the addressee at his, her or its address most recently provided to the Corporation. Any notice given by the
Corporation by mail shall be deemed to have been given at the time when deposited in the United States mail. Any
notice given by the Corporation by overnight courier service shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to
such service. Any notice given by the Corporation by facsimile, electronic mail or other means of electronic
transmission that generally can be accessed by or on behalf of the receiving party at substantially the same time as it is
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transmitted shall be deemed to have been given when transmitted, unless the Corporation receives a prompt reply that
such transmission is undeliverable to the address to which it was directed.

Section 8.4.                 Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the
statutes or of the Certificate of Incorporation or of these Bylaws, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or
persons entitled to such notice, or a waiver by electronic transmission by the person entitled to such notice, whether
before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall
constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting except when the person attends a meeting for the express purpose of
objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called
or convened.

Section 8.5.                 Form of Records. Any records maintained by the Corporation in the regular course of its
business, including its stock ledger, books of account, and minute books, may be kept on, or by means of, or be in the
form of, any information storage device or method, provided that the records so kept can be converted into clearly
legible paper form within a reasonable time.

Section 8.6.                 Amendment of Bylaws. Subject to any additional votes set forth in the Certificate of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, these Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed or new Bylaws may be adopted by
the stockholders or by the Board. Notwithstanding any provision of these Bylaws, the Certificate of Incorporation or
any provision of law which might otherwise permit a lesser vote or no vote, in addition to any vote of the holders of
any class or series of stock of the Corporation required by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation, the amendment
or repeal of all or any portion of Article I, II, VI or VII of these Bylaws or of this Section 8.6 by the stockholders of
the Corporation shall require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least seventy-five percent of the voting power of
the then outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a
single class.
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Section 8.7.                 Registered Stockholders. The Corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a
person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends and to vote as such owner and shall not be
bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on the part of another person,
whether or not it shall have express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Delaware.

Section 8.8.                 Facsimile Signature. In addition to the provisions for use of facsimile signatures elsewhere
specifically authorized in these Bylaws, facsimile signatures of any officer or officers of the Corporation may be used
whenever and as authorized by the Board or a committee thereof.

Section 8.9.                 Interpretation. For purposes of these Bylaws:

(a)headings used in these Bylaws are for convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be deemed apart of these Bylaws;

(b) the word “day” refers to a calendar day;

(c)the words “include,” “included,” “includes” and “including” as used herein shall not be construed so as to exclude anyother thing not referred to or described;

(d) the word “or” is not exclusive; and

(e)the definition given for any term in these Bylaws shall apply equally to both the singular and plural forms of theterm defined.
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